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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

DRAMATIC TURNAROUND CONTINUES

The Dramatic Turnaround of the previous year continued in the current year 2012-13 with Wockhardt achieving newer  
heights across all levels of operations. The company joined the Billion Dollar club by scaling $1 billion in Sales. The year 
also witnessed introduction of several niche products in the US market, and completion of the Nutrition business sale. The 
company saw betterment across all financial parameters with increased focus on R&D, manufacturing and efficient supply 
chain management.

REVENUES

Net Sales grew by 29% to ` 5,610 crore from ` 4,351 crore achieved during the previous year.

` in crore 

FY 13 FY 12 Change % Change

Revenue from operations 5,610 4,351 1,259 29%

Sequential growth in Sales continued in the current year as well 
with the latest quarter being the 8th consecutive quarter of 
sequential growth.

The revenue growth in FY 2013 is higher by 29% over FY 2012 
driven by 52% growth in US market, 12% growth in India 
and Emerging markets and 22% growth in European market 
(excluding France).
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The revenue split was lead by US operations at 52% 
(compared to 44% as in FY 2012) while European Business 
contributed 24% (compared to 28% in FY 2012) & India 
and Rest of the World contributing 24 % (compared to 
28% in FY 2012).
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PROFITABILITY
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The Gross Margins have consistently stayed above 60% 
from March-11 onwards.

The strong sales growth in US Operation and continued  
emphasis on cost control ensured substantial increase in  
EBITDA – rising by 51.9% to ` 2,091 crore (vs  ` 1,377 crore  
in previous year).    

The Company has recorded thirteen successive quarters of 
sequential growth in EBITDA.
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EBITDA & EBITDA Margins

Company’s EBITDA margins went up to 37.3% compared 
to 31.6% in the previous year.

Material consumption for FY13 stood at 30% of sales compared 
to 35% in FY12, largely due to improved realizations. US being a 
better margin geography and higher contribution in sales from 
US business resulted in better Gross Margins for the company.

During the year the company applied the revised criteria of 
recognition to its development costs and accordingly product 

a result the R&D costs for FY13 stood at 5.6% of sales compared 
to 1.7% in FY12, showing a growth of 317%. On a like to like basis 
the R&D costs showed a growth of 56%.

Other expenses were under control at 16% of sales for  
FY13 compared to 19% for FY12. Interest costs also reduced  
in FY13 compared to FY12 due to reduction in Debt during  
the year.
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DEBT AND LEVERAGE
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Net Debt to Equity The Net Debt to Equity ratio has now come down to 0.4.

During the year the company repaid loans of ` 1,521 crore 
including the settlement of the FCCB loans. Also a substantial 
portion of Indian debt has been repaid during the year.

Debt Position

` in crores

   FY 13  FY 12 Change % Change

Secured 2,062 3,271 (1,209) (37%)

Unsecured 8 221 (213) (96%)

Total 2,070 3,492 (1,422) (41%)

GLOBAL OUTLOOK

The Global Market for Pharmaceuticals is expected to breach the $ 1 Trillion mark in 2013 and go to $1.2 Trillion by 2016.
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Geographywise, USA will continue to hold the top position but its share will decline and countries like China will increase their 
presence.

  USA had been in the sub 10% growth trajectory since 2007 will be growing at an even lower growth rate of 1-4% per 
year range between 2012-16. The expected market size of US is set to grow to $ 350-380 Billion by 2016. Though Patent 
expiries will impact strongly till 2013, health reforms may provide a positive impact as will the brand products price 
increases.
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EU5, however, finds itself in a difficult territory with mounting national debts, healthcare spending cuts being implemented 
on providers including pharmaceutical companies and an overall slow or negative growth rates. Market does carry a risk 
of degrowth for a certain period of time while the overall economy manages to claw back. Pharmaceutical market growth 
(CAGR) is expected to be in -1 to 2% range with almost flattish revenue at $150-155 Billion in 2016.

China expectedly will be leading the charge and will be the highest growing region. The growth is expected to be 15-18% 
CAGR between 2012-16 and the Market size is expected to reach $161 Billion by 2016 making it world’s second largest 
market after US & beating Japan to no. 3.

India is expected to register second highest growth after China at 14-17% CAGR and is expected to more than double its 
market size to $29 Billion by 2016. 

Generic Penetration

The potential for the Generics market to grow globally is immense considering patent expiries, cuts in healthcare spending 
and increasing importance of pharma emerging economies.
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33%

2016: $ 1205 Billion

Generics market will continue the momentum across the world and particularly in the USA. The Shift from Branded to Generics 
will gather further pace as total Global sales of generics will increase from $ 242 Billion in 2011 to $415 Billion by 2016, a large 
component of which will be outside USA. The Generics market growth will be way ahead of the growth curve of the overall 
growth. A large component of this value, $230 Billion, will be from Pharmerging countries.

OPPORTUNITIES

As mentioned in the outlook, there are very significant opportunities in the Regulated and Pharmerging Countries’ Generics 
and Branded Generics markets and the company is well poised to strengthen its position by leveraging on its multidisciplinary 
Research capabilities and wide global Reach. 

The company has been performing well in most of the geographies it operates upon, even including the ones where the 
overall economic and pharmaceutical market growth has been significantly subdued thereby displaying a well-planned 
strategic thought process. 

Company’s strong research background in attaining higher degree of complexity in products technologies has benefited it 
with the dividends of better product offerings, higher sales and margins and lower competition. The company intends to 
continue on this path and move up the technology pyramid to continue exploiting these benefits.



 

RESEARCH

The company’s Research and development forays into Complex Technology Generics and Biotechnology places it in  
among a select few Hybrid Organizations which have multidimensional research facets. Over the period of time it has 
significantly scaled up its R&D talent and facilities as per the requirements of its future plans. It has R&D centers in India,  
US and Europe to cater to the technological needs of the products. The senior/top management takes a keen view and  
direct involvement in the product development program and has a stringent set of norms in identifying the potential products 
for development. 

Building upon the technological base it has already achieved in NDDS, Nasal device etc. technologies, the company looks 
forward to enhance its scale and product offerings in complex technology generics. Company’s current pipeline consists of 46 
filings with US FDA and intends to gradually increase the number of filings for sustained business returns. 

The company has very focused approach to its Biotechnology. In Biotechnology the company has made significant progress  
in developing biosimilars of Insulin and its analogs. Regulated markets are currently underway in developing biosimilar  
launch guidelines, 2 products (Insulin and Glargine) have already been launched in India as well as have product registrations 
in 34 countries for Insulin and 5 for Glargine. 

The Company spent ` 376 crore on R& D activities, representing 6.7% of sales (previous year ` 248 crore; 5.7% of sales)

CHALLENGES

During the last decade, the number of companies entering the lucrative Regulated Generics markets has increased. This 
has typically created the scenario of very high competition in simple products which are lower in technological intensity, 
thus significantly affecting the sales and margins of such products. It is thus the endeavor of the company to ensure 
higher complexity in its product portfolio which offers a challenging proposition in fast adaptation and throughput of such 
technologies and products. 

Cost control is another area which needs a careful review while ensuring that the research and development as well as 
manufacturing requirements are met as per the demands of products development. The company has successfully met this 
challenging scenario and has brought forward many viable measures for cost control.

India represents a strong business opportunity with its growth potential second to none barring China. However these 
opportunities are laden with price increase challenges on a host of products due to government initiatives on National 
Pricing Policy on certain critical drugs. The challenge will be to ensure alignment to the growth parameters and growing  
ahead of the market with the help of new product development, higher volume sales while adhering to the Pricing regulations 
where applicable.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The company is exclusively into pharmaceutical business segment.

COMPANY OUTLOOK

The company’s long term outlook continues to be promising given the following

a. Overall growth in the global pharmaceutical industry

b. Wockhardt’s continued focus on R&D

c. Increasing pipeline of niche & complex technology generic products

d. Encouraging progress on Bio-similars and NCE programs.

The short term outlook however is constrained by the recent FDA import alert on its manufacturing site at Waluj. The company 
is in the process of initiating several mitigating measures and is determined to resolve the issue at the earliest.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The company has set up internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of the business. These business 
procedures ensure optimum use and protection of the resources and compliance with the policies, procedures and statutes. 
The internal control systems provide for well-defined policies, guidelines and authorizations and approval procedures.  
The prime objective of such audits is to test the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls laid down by management 
and to suggest improvements.

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The dynamics of a vibrant and growing organization thus requires a significant management interest, investment and skill 
development of the employees to take the organization on the aspired path of success. At Wockhardt, the Human Resources 
function has initiated a coordinated effort spanning multiple initiatives and programs to ensure all its associates live the 
corporate mantra of “Joy of Performance”. 

One of the major dynamics of these initiatives is the identification of high potential candidates and charting out their future 

Program to ensure that the future leaders of the organization are not only identified early but presented with personality and 
leadership development scenarios which thus expand their capabilities to take higher and newer challenges. 

The organization is strongly aligned to nurture competencies in its associate and all the way from the field sales to R&D to 
Manufacturing domains. This is a critical component of its success and will play a significant part in organization’s journey into 
higher echelons of a superior hybrid organization.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Wockhardt Limited

1.  We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Wockhardt Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries and 
associate companies, hereinafter referred to as (“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.  Management is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

4.  In our opinion, based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on other 
financial information of the components and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

 (b) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

 (c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

5.  We draw attention to Note no. 29 of the Financial Statements regarding reassessment and revision thereof of recognition criteria 
for capitalization of product development costs incurred by the Group, which being technical in nature has been relied upon by us. 
Consequently, the Group has (a) expensed off carried forward cost of products under development as at June 30, 2012 amounting 
to ` 436.88 crore to the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Exceptional Items’ and (b) charged off product development 
expenditure incurred during the period July 2012 to March 2013 amounting to `
respective expense heads. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

6.  The values in the Consolidated Financial Statements are also stated in United States Dollars translated at the closing year end rates. We 
have not reviewed the translations of the amounts mentioned in United States Dollar in the financial statements, and accordingly do not 
express an opinion on such amounts.

Statements, whose financial statements together comprise total net assets of ` 2,322.40 crore as at March 31, 2013, total net revenues of 
` 1,566.03 crore and net cash inflows amounting to `
Consolidated Financial Statements which constitute net loss of `
other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our audit opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, to the extent they have been derived from such financial statements is based solely on the reports 
of such auditors.

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103523W

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner
Membership No. 30823

Place : Mumbai
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at March 31, 2013

Note  

No.

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

` in crore

 As at  

March 31,  

2013 

 USD in million 

As at  
March 31,  

2012 
` in crore 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
USD in million 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Share capital 3 353.34  65.10 816.09  160.55 

Reserves and surplus 4 2,350.84 433.14 654.93 128.85 

2,704.18 498.24 289.40 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowings 5 1,475.15 271.80 532.44 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 –  –  101.00 19.88 

Long-term provisions 69.85 12.87 84.49 16.61 

1,545.00 284.67 2,891.88 568.93 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings 8 182.00 33.53 260.80 51.31 

Trade payables 9 634.15 116.84 540.80 106.39 

Other current liabilities 10 789.96 145.53 192.48 

Short-term provisions 11  184.76  34.04  110.96  21.83 

 1,790.87  329.94  1,890.94 

TOTAL 6,040.05 1,112.85 6,253.84 1,230.34 

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS 12

 Tangible assets  1,150.38  211.95 1,103.86 

 Intangible assets  839.22  154.63 

 Capital work-in-progress  490.94  90.45 98.12 

 Intangible assets under development – – 403.54 

Non-current investments 13 2.63 0.48 

Deferred tax assets (net) 6  24.20  4.45 –  –  

Long-term loans and advances 14 200.74 36.99 40.91 

Other non-current assets 15  5.01  0.92 –  –  

 2,713.12  499.87 

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 16  1,058.83  195.10 888.56 

Trade receivables  958.46  176.59 149.26 

Cash and bank balances 18  1,096.06  201.94 699.99 

Short-term loans and advances 19 213.58 39.35 26.42 

 3,326.93  612.98  2,481.51  488.20 

TOTAL  6,040.05  1,112.85  6,253.84  1,230.34 

Significant accounting policies 2

The notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of the Financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



Consolidated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2013

Note  

No.

For the  

year ended  

March 31, 

2013  

` in crore

 For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013 

 USD in million 

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012 

` in crore 

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

USD in million 

Revenue from operations 20  5,615.19  1,034.58 4,354.34  856.64 

Less: Excise duty  (5.77)  (1.06) (3.84)

Revenue from operations (net)  5,609.42  1,033.52  4,350.50  855.88 

Other income 21  51.21  9.44 23.31 4.59 

TOTAL REVENUE  5,660.63  1,042.96 

Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed  1,290.77  237.80 1,060.88 

Purchases of stock-in-trade  637.06  117.40  112.95 

Changes in inventories of finished goods,  
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 22  (180.27)  (33.22)  (100.64)

Employee benefits expense 23  655.90  120.85 

Finance costs 24  215.37  39.67 269.02 52.92 

Depreciation and amortization expense 12  122.14  22.50  22.64 

Exchange fluctuation loss/(gain), net  27.88  5.14 21.46  4.22 

Other expenses 25  1,115.61  205.53 866.01 

TOTAL EXPENSES  3,884.46  715.67

PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS  

AND TAX  1,776.17  327.29 994.96 

Exceptional items (gains)/loss [including profit 
on sale of Nutrition business ` 29 & 30  (61.52)  (11.33)  93.21 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  1,837.69  338.62 521.19 102.54 

Tax expense:

 Current tax  (371.65)  (68.48)  (98.38)  (19.35)

 MAT credit – –  49.64 

 Deferred tax  113.44  20.90  (34.04)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS 1,579.48 291.04 299.45 58.92 

PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 41 22.51 4.15 55.53 10.92 

Tax expense of discontinued operations 41 7.30 1.35 13.39 2.63 

PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

(AFTER TAX) 41 15.21 2.80 42.14 8.29 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,594.69 293.84 341.59 

Add:  Share in Profit/(Loss) of Associate 
Companies  (0.57)  (0.11) 1.12  0.22 

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,594.12 293.73 

Earnings per equity share of face value of  
` 5/- each: 28

(1) Basic ` 145.61  2.68 31.31  0.62 

(2) Diluted ` 143.34  2.64 31.15  0.61 

Significant accounting policies 2

The notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of the Financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



WOCKHARDT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year Ended March 31, 2013

For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013 

` in crore

For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013 

USD in million

For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

` in crore

For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

USD in million

A. CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES:

  Net Profit Before Tax (including profit from 
discontinued operations)  1,860.20  342.74 

 Adjustments for: 
  Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 

(ESOS)  25.82  4.76  10.20  2.01 
 Depreciation / amortisation  124.84  23.00  122.51  24.10 
 Product development expenses written off  1.49  0.27  10.58 
 Exchange fluctuation, net  27.86  5.13  21.46  4.22 
 Liabilities no more payable  (6.44)  (1.19)  (3.05)  (0.60)
 Provision for doubtful debts, bad debts written 

off & One time charge backs  1.46  0.27  1.88 
 Provision for doubtful advances  (15.06)  (2.77)  29.36 
 Bad debts   (0.80)  (0.15)  (2.03)  (0.40)
 (Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets, net  2.79  0.51  (1.10)  (0.22)
 Write off of development cost  471.61  86.89 – –  
 Impairment of goodwill  621.21  114.46  333.50  65.61 
 Profit on divestment of nutrition business  (1,195.27)  (220.22) – –  
 Actuarial gain on pension scheme  (11.69)  (2.15) – –  
 Impairment of investments  18.77  3.46 – –  
 Other exceptional items   22.16  4.08 – –  
 Gain on settlements –  –  

 Wealth tax expense –  –   0.01 –  
 CDR recompense provision –   –   105.56 
 Finance costs  215.37  39.68  52.90 
 Interest income  (30.81)  (5.68)  (9.64)  (1.90)
 Dividend income  (0.001) –  –  –  
 Operating profit before working capital changes  2,133.51  393.09  1,494.31  293.99 
 Movement in working capital 
  (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (204.86)  (37.74)  (34.40)
  (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (207.73)  (38.28)  (104.25)  (20.51)
  (Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances 

and other assets  (80.01)  (14.74)  (33.61)  (6.61)
   Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables, 

other liabilities and provisions  149.66  27.57  4.58 
  Adjustment for translation difference in 

working capital  75.95  13.99  159.49  31.38 
 Cash generated from operations  1,866.52  343.89  268.43 
 Income taxes paid  (334.12)  (61.56)  (20.54)  (4.04)
 Net cash from Operating Activities (A)  1,532.40  282.33  1,343.83  264.39 
B. CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

 Purchase of fixed assets, additions to capital work 
in progress and intangibles under development  (341.43)  (62.91)  (62.49)

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  79.63  14.67  1.21  0.24 
 Proceeds from sale of investments  68.78  12.67 – –  
 Proceeds from sale of nutrition business  1,288.31  237.37 –  –  
 Repayment by/(Loans to) companies – –   (1.22)  (0.24)
 Margin money and fixed deposits under lien  (40.73)  (7.50)  2.46  0.48 
 Interest received  30.81  5.68  9.64  1.90 
 Dividend received  0.001 –  –  –  
 Net cash from/(used in) Investing Activities (B)  1,085.37  199.98  (305.45)  (60.11)



Consolidated

For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013 

` in crore

For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013 

USD in million

For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

` in crore

For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

USD in million

C. CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

 Proceeds from issuance of share capital  0.07  0.01 –  –  
 Premium on issue of shares  1.57  0.29 –  –  
 Redemption of preference share capital  (317.15)  (58.43) –  –  
 Premium on redemption of preference shares  (33.72)  (6.21) –  –  
 Proceeds from long term borrowings  1.18  0.22  1.98  0.39 
 Repayment of long term borrowings  (1,442.67)  (265.81)  (523.66)  (103.02)
 Short term borrowings (net)  (78.80)  (14.52)  (129.26)  (25.43)
 Interest paid  (375.76)  (69.23)  (34.53)
  Dividend paid (including Dividend  

distribution tax)  (0.47)  (0.09)  (0.12)  (0.02)
 Net cash used in Financing Activities (C)  (2,245.75)  (413.77)  (826.56)  (162.61)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)  372.02 68.54  211.82 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year  689.66  127.07  92.48 
 Unrealised gain/(loss) on foreign currency cash and 
cash equivalents  (11.67)  (2.15)  1.52 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year  1,050.01  193.46  689.66 
Components of cash and cash equivalents, as at  
March 31, 2013
Cash  0.10  0.02  0.11  0.02 
Balance with banks: 
 – on current accounts (excluding unclaimed 

dividend accounts)  997.96  183.87  688.51  135.45 
 – on Unpaid Dividend Account (Refer note 4)  0.83  0.15  1.04  0.20 
 – on fixed deposit accounts  51.12  9.42 –  – 

 1,050.01  193.46  689.66 
Notes:
1. All figures in bracket are outflow.
2. Income taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activies. 
3. Cash flow in respect of ordinary activities attributable to discontinued operations:
 Operating activities – ` 19.02 crore (Previous Year – ` 58.66 crore)
 Investing activities – ` Nil (Previous Year – ` Nil)
 Financing activities – ` 0.04 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.15 crore)
4. These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unpaid dividend liabilities. 

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



WOCKHARDT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2013
(All amounts in crore of `, unless otherwise stated)

1. (a) Background

  Wockhardt Limited (‘WL’ or ‘Company’) is a subsidiary of Khorakiwala Holdings and Investments Private Limited. The Company has 
controlling interest, directly or through subsidiaries, step down subsidiaries, associates in the following entities during the year ended 
March 31, 2013:

Entity Country of 

Incorporation

Name of Parent Percentage of 

holding (%)

Subsidiaries

 1. Wockhardt Biopharm Limited India Wockhardt Limited 100%
 2. Vinton Healthcare Limited India Wockhardt Limited 100%
 3. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development 

Limited
India Wockhardt Limited 100%

 4. Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited England & Wales Wockhardt Limited 100%
 5. Wockhardt Bio AG [formerly, Wockhardt EU Switzerland Wockhardt Limited 100%

 6. Wockhardt Europe Limited British Virgin Islands Wockhardt Limited 100%
Step-down subsidiaries

 1. CP Pharmaceuticals Limited England & Wales Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited 100%
 2. Wallis Group Limited England & Wales Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited 100%
 3. The Wallis Laboratory Limited England & Wales Wallis Group Limited 100%
 4. Wallis Licensing Limited England & Wales Wallis Group Limited 100%
 5. Wockhardt Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda Brazil The Wallis Laboratory Limited

Wockhardt Europe Limited
90%
10%

 6. Z & Z Services GmbH (formerly, Esparma 
GmbH)

Germany Wockhardt Bio AG 100%

Esparma AG Switzerland Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
 8. Wockhardt Cyprus Limited Cyprus Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
 9. Wockhardt UK Limited England & Wales Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
10. CP Pharma (Schweiz) AG Switzerland Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
11. Wockpharma Ireland Limited Ireland Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
12. Pinewood Laboratories Limited Ireland Wockpharma Ireland Limited 100%
13. Nonash Limited Ireland Pinewood Laboratories Limited 100%
14. Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. France Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
15. Niverpharma S.A.S. France Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 100%
16. Laboratoires Pharma 2000 S.A.S. France Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 100%

Hariphar S.C.# France Laboratoires Pharma 2000 S.A.S.
Laboratoires Negma S.A.S.

90%
10%

18. Laboratoires Negma S.A.S. France Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 100%
19. S.C.I. Salome# France Laboratoires Negma S.A.S. 100%
20. Negma Beneulex S.A. Belgium Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 

Laboratoires Negma S.A.S. 46.03%
21. Phytex S.A.S. France Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 100%
22. Laboratoires Lerads S.A.S.# France Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. 100%
23. Wockhardt Holding Corp. USA Wockhardt Bio AG 100%
24. Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc. USA Wockhardt Holding Corp. 100%
25. MGP Inc. USA Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc. 100%
26. Wockhardt USA LLC USA Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc. 100%

Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV w.e.f. 
June 21, 2012

Mexico Wockhardt Bio AG 100%

28. Wockhardt Services SA DE CV  
w.e.f. November 9, 2012

Mexico Wockhardt Bio AG 100%

29. Wockhardt Nigeria Limited Nigeria Wockhardt Europe Limited 100%
Associate

 1. Swiss Biosciences AG Switzerland Wockhardt Bio AG 45%

  #  During the year, Laboratories Lerads S.A.S. was merged with Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S., the Holding Company on 
November 28, 2012. S.C.I. Salome (a subsidiary of Laboratories Negma S.A.S.) and Haripar S.C. (a subsidiary of Laboratories 
Pharma 2000 S.A.S.) were liquidated as on November 14, 2012 and November 28, 2012 respectively. 



Consolidated

  The Company together with its subsidiaries Wockhardt Europe Limited (‘WEL’), Wockhardt Biopharm Limited (‘WBL’), Wockhardt 
Infrastructure Development Limited (‘WIDL’), Consolidated Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited (‘WUK’), Vinton Healthcare Limited 
(‘VHL’) and Consolidated Wockhardt Bio AG (collectively, ‘the Group’) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and 
marketing of pharmaceutical products. The Group has twelve manufacturing locations and there are five locations where research 
and development activities are carried out.

 (b) Basis of consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (“IGAAP”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. IGAAP comprise mandatory accounting 
standards notified by the Central Government of India under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by 
Securities and Exchange Board of India.

 (c) Principles of consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements includes the financial statements of Wockhardt Limited (‘WL’ or ‘Company’), the parent 
company and all of its subsidiaries in which the company has more than one-half of the voting power of an enterprise or where 
the Company controls the composition of the board of directors. 

  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

  (a) The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared based on a line-by-line consolidation of the financial 
statements of Wockhardt Limited and its subsidiaries using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances. All material inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation. Wockhardt 
Limited and all the subsidiaries have closed books of accounts as at March 31, 2013 as year-end for the purpose of preparing 
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

  (b) Investment of the company in associates is accounted as per the equity method prescribed under notified Accounting 
Standard 23 – “Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements” under Company (Accounting 
Standard) Rules, 2006.

  (c) The excess of cost to the Group of its investments in subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the subsidiary 
companies at the dates, on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognised as ‘Goodwill (on 
Consolidation)’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the 
subsidiary companies as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investment of the Group, it is recognised as ‘Capital 
Reserve (on Consolidation)’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, in the consolidated financial statements.

  (d) Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are translated into Indian rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the Balance Sheet 
date. Revenues and expenses are translated into Indian rupees at average of twelve months closing rates and the resulting net 
translation adjustment aggregating ` 26.60 crore (USD 4.90 million) [Previous Year – `
been adjusted to Reserves.

  (e) The operations of the Company’s subsidiaries are considered as non-integral operations for the purpose of consolidation.

  (f ) The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by the parent 
company for its separate financial statements.

  (g) Convenience translation
   The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in Indian rupees, the national currency of India. Solely for the 

convenience of the reader, the financial statements as of and for the 12 months ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 
have been translated into United States dollars at the closing rate [USD 1 = ` `
representation is made that the Indian rupee amounts have been, could have been or could be converted into United States 
dollars at such a rate or any other rate.

 (d) Use of estimates

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based 
upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

2. Summary of Group’s Significant Accounting Policies

 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified accounting standards by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an 
accrual basis except in case of assets for which provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried out. The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied by the Group and are consistent with those used in the previous period. These consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared to meet the requirements of clause 32 of the listing agreement with the stock exchanges. The significant 
accounting policies of the Group are as follows:

 (a) Fixed assets and depreciation/amortization

  Tangible assets:

  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss, if any. The Group capitalizes all 
costs relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed assets.

  Depreciation/amortization:

  Depreciation is provided, using the straight-line method, pro-rata to the period of use of assets, at the rates specified in Schedule 
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or useful life of the assets estimated by the management, whichever is higher.

  Fixed assets whose aggregate cost is ` 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.
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  Intangible assets:

  Intangible assets except goodwill are amortised on a straight line basis up to the period of ten years, which is based on their 
estimated useful life.

  Goodwill is tested for impairment.

 (b) Foreign currency translations

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange 
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

  Foreign currency monetary items are reported using closing foreign exchange rate. Non-monetary items, which are carried in terms 
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company’s monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income 
or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

  Premium or discount on forward exchange contracts arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense 
or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract 
is recognized as income or as expense for the year.

  Translation of Non-integral foreign operation:
  In translating the financial statements of a non-integral foreign operation for incorporation in financial statements, the assets 

and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non integral foreign operation are translated at the closing rate; income 
and expenses item of the non-integral operation are translated at exchange rates at the date of the transaction; and all resulting 
exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net investment.

  On the disposal of the non-integral foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences which have been 
deferred and which relate to that operation are recognised as income or as expense in the same period in which the gain or loss 
on disposal is recognised.

  Translation of Integral foreign operations:
  In respect of representative offices and branches, monetary items are translated using the closing rate; non-monetary items are 

translated using the monthly average rate which is expected to approximate the actual rate on the date of transaction; items of 
income and expenses are translated at the respective monthly average rates; and the net exchange difference resulting from the 
translation of items in the financial statements of foreign integral operations is recognised as income or as expense for the year.

 (c) Investments

  Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. Current 
investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are 
stated at cost. Provision is made to recognise a diminution, other than temporary, in the value of investments.

  Investments in associates, accounted under the equity method of accounting, are initially recorded at cost, identifying any goodwill/
capital reserve at the time of acquisition. The carrying amount of such investments is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition 
change in the Group’s share of net assets of the investee unless there is an agreement to the contrary. The carrying amount of 
investment in an associate is reduced to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investment, such reduction 
being determined and made for each investment individually.

 (d) Inventories

  All inventories are valued at moving weighted average price other than finished goods, which are valued on quarterly moving 
average price. Finished goods and Work-in-progress are computed based on respective moving weighted average price of procured 
materials and appropriate share of labour and other manufacturing overheads.

  Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost also includes all charges incurred for bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. Excise and customs duty accrued on production or import of goods, as 
applicable, is included in the valuation of finished goods.

  Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at cost.

  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make 
the sale.

 (e) Employee benefits

  Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, Super annuation Schemes and non-contributory money 
purchase scheme, which are defined contribution schemes, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the 
contributions to the respective funds accrue. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective 
trusts.

  Gratuity liability, which is a defined benefit scheme, is provided for, on the basis of an actuarial valuation made using Projected Unit 
Credit Method at the end of each financial year.

  Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based 
on actuarial valuation made using Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of each financial year.



Consolidated

  Actuarial gains and losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. 

  WUK operates defined contribution pension scheme. Till February 2004, WUK operated defined benefit pension scheme. The assets 
of schemes are held separately from those of the WUK in an independently administered fund.

  Pinewood Laboratories Limited operates defined contribution pension schemes. Pension rights are secured by contributions to 
independent insurance schemes. The pension cost charge represents contributions by the company to the insurance schemes.

  Wockhardt USA LLC. (WUSA) and Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc., maintains 401(k) retirement contribution plans that cover all 
regular employees on their payroll. The Companies make a matching contribution on the first 6% and employee participation is 
allowable as per US Government laws. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the company in an independently 
administered fund.

  Employee stock option schemes
  In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India guidelines, the excess of the market price of shares, at the date 

of grant of options under the Employee stock option schemes, over the exercise price is treated as employee compensation and 
amortised over the vesting period.

 (f) Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured.

  Sale of Goods
  Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which coincides 

with dispatch of goods to customers. Revenues are recorded at invoice value, net of excise duty, sales tax, value added tax (VAT), 
returns and trade discounts. Also, revenue from sales are net of charge backs and rebates.

  Sale of Services
  Revenues from services are recognised on completion of rendering of services.

  Export Incentive
  Benefit on account of entitlement to import duty free materials under the “Duty Entitlement Pass Book Schemes” is recognized in 

the year of export.

  Duty drawback
  Duty drawback is recognized at the time of exports and the benefits in respect of advance license received by the Company against 

export made by it are recognized as and when goods are imported against them.

  Royalties
  Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

  Dividend and Interest
  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Interest income is recognized on a time 

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

 (g)  Research and development (R&D)

  Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward when 
its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortized over the period of 
expected future sales from the related project, not exceeding ten years.

  The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment when the asset is not yet in use, and otherwise when events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

 (h)  Impairment of Assets

   The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date, are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of 
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of 
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount.

   The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the 
future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss 
recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.

 (i)  Income tax

  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

  Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the provisions of local 
Income Tax rules as applicable to the financial year. A deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is 
measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent it has timing differences, the reversal of which will result in sufficient income. In situations where 
the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.
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  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in 
accordance with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company 
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified year.

  Income tax charge is the simple aggregation of the tax charge appearing in the group companies.

 (j)  Leases

  Operating leases

  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the lease term are classified as 
operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

  Finance Lease

  The assets are included in fixed assets and the capital elements of the leasing commitments are shown as obligations under finance 
leases and hire purchase contracts. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations and the interest element is 
charged against profit in proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated 
over the shorter of the lease terms and the useful lives of equivalent owned assets.

 (k) Financing/Borrowing cost

  Financing/Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and/or construction of qualifying asset are capitalised as a part of the cost 
of such assets, up to the date such assets are ready for their intended use. Other financing/borrowing costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs are recognised immediately as an expense.

  Expenses incurred in connection with raising of funds are amortised over the tenure of the borrowing.

 (l) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted 
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (1) possible obligations which will be 
confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (2) present obligations arising from past events 
where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation cannot be made.

  Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements as this may result in the recognition of income that may never be 
realised.

 (m) Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue to existing 
shareholders and share split. 

  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares from the exercise of options 
on unissued share capital. The number of equity shares is the aggregate of the weighted average number of equity shares and the 
weighted average number of equity shares, which would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into 
equity shares. Options on unissued equity share capital are deemed to have been converted into equity shares. 

 (n) Government grants

  Government grants in respect of capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account and are released to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss over the expected useful life of the relevant assets. Grants of revenue nature are credited to income in the year 
to which they relate.

 (o) Derivative Financial Instruments

  The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as option contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risk associated 
with foreign currency fluctuations and interest rates.

  As per the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) Announcement, accounting for derivative contracts, other than those 
covered under AS-11, are marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the loss is charged to the income statement. Net gains are 
ignored.

 (p) Operating Cycle

  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per each Company’s normal operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Revised Schedule VI to the Act.



Consolidated

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Number of 
shares

Amount  
` in crore

Amount  
USD in million

Number of 
shares

Amount  
` in crore

Amount  
USD in million

3. SHARE CAPITAL 

 AUTHORISED
 Equity shares of ` 5/- each  250,000,000  125.00  23.03  250,000,000  125.00  24.59 
 Preference shares of ` 5/- each  2,000,000,000  1,000.00  184.25  2,000,000,000  1,000.00 

 1,125.00  207.28  1,125.00  221.32 
 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
  Equity shares of ` 5/- each fully 

paid up
  Shares outstanding as at the 

beginning of the Year  109,435,903  54.72  10.08  109,435,903 
  Add:  Shares Issued during the 

Year pursuant to ESOS  147,500  0.07  0.01 –  –  – 
  Shares outstanding as at the end 

of the Year  109,583,403  54.79  10.09  109,435,903 
  Optionally Convertible 

Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference shares of ` 5/- each 
fully paid up:

  Shares outstanding as at the 
beginning of the Year  446,549,949  223.27  41.14  446,549,949  43.92 

  Add:  Shares Issued during the Year – –  –  –  –  –  
  Less:  Shares redeemed during 

the year  325,095,022  162.55  29.95 – –  –  
  Shares outstanding as at the end 

of the Year  121,454,927  60.72  11.19  446,549,949  43.92 
  Non Convertible Cumulative 

Redeemable Preference shares 
of ` 5/- each fully paid up:

  Shares outstanding as at the 
beginning of the Year  1,076,198,988  538.10  99.14  1,043,883,858  521.94  102.68 

  Add:  Shares Issued during the Year – –   –  32,315,130 16.16  3.18 
  Less:  Shares redeemed during 

the year  600,539,047  300.27  55.32 – – –
  Shares outstanding as at the end 

of the Year  475,659,941  237.83  43.82  538.10  105.86 
 TOTAL  353.34  65.10   816.09  160.55 

 Notes:

 (a)  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share held and is entitled to dividend, if declared at the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the 
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 (b)  Issue of Preference Shares as per Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Scheme:

   During the year under review, Nil (Previous Year – 32,315,130) preference shares of ` 5/- each fully paid up were issued pursuant 
to approved CDR package against various liabilities of the Company to Banks/Financial Institutions.

  The terms and conditions of Preference shares are as follows:
 

on the following terms and conditions:
    The Preference Share holders shall have the right to convert OCCRPS Series 1, along with accumulated dividend, into fully 

paid equity shares of the Company, in one or more tranches, commencing October 25, 2015 till December 31, 2018, at 
conversion price as per the then applicable SEBI formula on the date of conversion. The said shares, in case not converted, 
shall get redeemed along with accumulated dividend on December 31, 2018 without any redemption premium. The Deemed 
Date of allotment is October 25, 2009.

    Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with CDR Scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year at 
premium amounting to ` 16.86 crore.

 
Series 2) issued bilaterally to various banks, on the following terms and conditions:

    The Preference Share holders shall have the right to convert OCCRPS Series 2 along with accumulated dividend, into fully 
paid equity shares of the Company, in one or more tranches, commencing July 4, 2016 till December 31, 2018, at conversion 
price as per the then applicable SEBI formula on the date of conversion. The said shares, in case not converted, shall get 
redeemed along with accumulated dividend on December 31, 2018 without any redemption premium. 
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during the year at 25% of its face value.

redeemable at a premium of 38% of the face value along with cumulative dividend on December 31, 2018. 
    Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with the CDR Scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year 

at premium amounting to ` 16.86 crore.
  (iv)  32,265,110 (Previous Year – 32,265,110) 0.01% Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (NCRPS Series 2), 

redeemable at a premium of 20% of the face value along with cumulative dividend on December 31, 2018.
  (v)  283,394,831 (Previous Year – 555,320,909) 0.01% Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (NCRPS Series 

3) issued bilaterally to various banks, redeemable at a redemption premium calculated at 4% p.a. on simple basis along with 
cumulative dividend on December 31, 2018. 

during the year at 25% of its face value. 

redeemable along with cumulative dividend on September 30, 2018. However, in case the Company exits CDR, the Preference 
Shares shall be redeemed at the point of exit. 

    Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with the CDR Scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year.
  (vii)  160,000,000 (Previous Year – 160,000,000) 0.01% Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (NCRPS Series 

5), redeemable at a premium of 20% of the face value along with cumulative dividend on March 31, 2019.

 (c)  Shares held by holding company:

holding company.

 (d)  160,000,000 (Previous Year – 160,000,000) Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares – Series 5 are held by 
Khorakiwala Holdings and Investments Private Limited, the holding company.

 (e)  Details of equity shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% of total equity shares:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Name of the Shareholder No. of  

Shares held
% of  

Holding 
No. of  

Shares held 
% of  

Holding 
Khorakiwala Holdings and Investments  
Private Limited 69,716,132 63.62

Dartmour Holdings Private Limited 6,828,325 6.23  6,828,325 6.24

 (f )  Details of Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable preference shares (NCRPS) held by each shareholders holding more 
than 5% of total Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable preference shares:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Name of the Shareholder No. of  

Shares held
% of  

Holding 
No. of  

Shares held 
% of  

Holding 
Khorakiwala Holdings and Investments 
Private Limited 160,000,000 33.64 160,000,000
Indian Overseas Bank 104,563,437 21.98 106,533,189 9.90
Union Bank of India 74,397,151 15.64

Corporation Bank 50,929,498 10.71 – –
HDFC Bank Limited 43,233,260 9.09 – –
Punjab National Bank 29,778,521 6.26 – –
State Bank of India – – 46.20

 (g)  Details of Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) held by each shareholders holding 
more than 5% of total OCCRPS:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Name of the Shareholder No. of  

Shares held
% of  

Holding 
No. of  

Shares held 
% of  

Holding 
Indian Overseas Bank  39,888,348  32.84  39,888,348 8.93
Union Bank of India  31,884,492  26.25  31,884,492 
Corporation Bank  21,826,928  17.97 – –  
HDFC Bank Limited  18,528,540  15.26 –  –  
Punjab National Bank  9,326,619  7.68 –  –  
State Bank of India –   –    325,095,022 

 (h) Shares reserved for issue under options:

   Equity shares of 1,593,000 (Previous Year – 1,540,000) of face value ` 5 each have been reserved for issue under Wockhardt Stock 
Option Scheme-2011.



Consolidated

As at   
March 31,  

2013  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
USD in million

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

 Capital Reserve

 Opening Balance – –   –  –  
  Add:  Addition during the Year [Refer note (a) 

 145.67  26.84 –  –  
 Closing Balance  145.67  26.84 –  –  
 Capital Redemption Reserve

 Opening Balance  26.53  4.89  26.53  5.22 
  Add:  Transferred from surplus [Refer note (b) 

 462.82  85.27 –  –  
 Closing Balance  489.35  90.16  26.53  5.22 
 Securities Premium Account

 Opening Balance  13.41  2.47  13.41  2.64 
  Add:  Securities premium credited on Share 

issue pursuant to ESOS  6.04  1.11 –  –  
  Less:  Utilised for premium on redemption of 

Preference shares  (13.41)  (2.47) –  –  
 Closing Balance  6.04  1.11  13.41  2.64 
 Capital Reserve on Consolidation 

 Opening Balance  18.11  3.34  18.11  3.56 
 Closing Balance  18.11  3.34  18.11  3.56 
 General Reserve 

 Opening Balance  175.28  32.29  34.48 
 Add:  Transferred from debenture redemption 

reserve  12.50  2.30 –  –  
 Add: Transferred from Surplus  62.27  11.47 –  –  
 Closing Balance  250.05  46.06  34.48 
 Debenture Redemption Reserve

 Opening Balance  12.50  2.30 –  –  
 Add: Addition during the year –  –   12.50  2.46 
 Less:  Transferred to general reserve upon 

redemption  12.50  2.30 –  –  
 Closing Balance – –   12.50  2.46 
  Share Options Outstanding Account  

(Refer note 35)
 Opening Balance  58.47  10.77 –  –
 Add: Addition during the year (net)  23.03  4.24  11.50 

 81.50  15.01  11.50 
 Less:  Deferred Employee Compensation expense  (49.96)  (9.20)  (9.50)
 Closing Balance  31.54  5.81  10.20  2.00 
 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

 Opening Balance  (24.20)  (4.46)  (183.31)  (36.06)
  Add/(Less):  Effect of Foreign exchange rate 

variation during the year  26.60  4.90  159.11  31.30 
 Closing Balance  2.40  0.44  (24.20)
 Surplus

 Opening balance  423.10  77.95  93.15  18.33 
 Add: Net Profit for the current year  1,594.12  293.73 

 Less:  Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve  (462.82)  (85.27) –  –  
  Less:  Premium on redemption of Preference 

 (20.31)  (3.74) –  –  
 Less: Proposed dividend on preference shares  (0.03)  (0.01)  (0.22)  (0.04)
  Less:  Tax on proposed preference shares dividend  (0.01) –   (0.04)  (0.01)
 Less:  Transferred to debenture redemption 

reserve – –   (12.50)  (2.46)
 Less: Transferred to general reserve  (62.27)  (11.47) – –
 Less:  Proposed dividend on equity shares 

[amount per share ` 5 (Previous Year –  
`  (54.79)  (10.09) –  –  

 Less: Tax on proposed equity shares dividend  (9.31)  (1.72) – – 
 Closing Balance  1,407.68  259.38  423.10  83.25 
 TOTAL  2,350.84  433.14  654.93  128.85 
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 Notes:

 
` 194.22 crore.

    As per the original terms, the Preference Share holders had the right to convert OCCRPS Series 2 along with accumulated 
dividend, into fully paid equity shares of the Company, in one or more tranches, commencing July 4, 2016 till December 31, 2018, 
at conversion price as per the then applicable SEBI formula on the date of conversion. The said shares, in case not converted, shall 
get redeemed along with accumulated dividend on December 31, 2018 without any redemption premium. NCRPS Series 3 was 
redeemable at redemption premium calculated at 4% p.a. on simple basis along with cumulative dividend on December 31, 2018.

   During the year, pursuant to modification in the terms, the Company has redeemed the aforesaid shares at 25% of its face value. 
The difference between the face value and redemption value of `

 (b)  During the year, the Company has created capital redemption reserve of ` 462.82 crore against redemption of following preference 
shares of ` 5 each:

As at   
March 31,  

2013  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
USD in million

5. LONG TERM BORROWINGS

 SECURED

  10% Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures 
(Refer note I and A below) –  –   150.00  29.51 

 Term Loans:
   from banks/financial institutions (Refer 

note I to IV and B below)
 1,465.63  270.04  486.03 

  from others (Refer note V and B below)  1.88  0.35  15.12 
  1,467.51  270.39  501.15 
   1,467.51  270.39  530.66 
 UNSECURED

 Deferred payment liabilities 

   Sales tax deferral loan (Refer note VI below)  3.10  0.57  3.91 
 Loans from Others (Refer note VII below)  4.54  0.84  5.14  1.01 
  7.64  1.41  9.05 
  TOTAL  1,475.15  271.80  532.44 

 (I)  The CDR EG approved the Company’s exit from the CDR vide its letter dated March 14, 2013 which was subject to payment of 
recompense to all lenders till the date of exit. The Company has repaid to CDR lenders, all the loans along with full recompense 
on loans till the date of repayment. The process to obtain the No Dues and No Objection Certificates for releasing the securities 
provided to CDR lenders under the CDR Scheme (as stated in A and B below) is currently under progress.

 (II)  Term loan of Euro 91.1 million (` `

 (III)  Term loan of Euro 25.4 million (` `
Limited is secured by pledge of shares of Pinewood Laboratories Limited and Nonash Limited, all movable and immovable 
properties of Pinewood Laboratories Limited situated at Unit at M50, Business Park, Ballymount, Dublin 12 and Deerpark, 
Ballymacarbry, Co. Waterford by way of first fixed charge.

  

 (IV)  Loan availed by Wockhardt Bio AG of USD 196.88 million (` 1,068.54 crore) [Previous Year – USD 250 million (`
secured as under:

  (i)  first ranking pari passu charge on immovable properties of Wockhardt Limited situated at Kadaiya in Daman and Baddi in 
Himachal Pradesh

  (ii)  second ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the current assets, movables, inventories and book debts 
of Wockhardt Limited

   Further, out of loan of ` 1,068.54 crore (Previous Year – ` ` 431.69 crore) [Previous 
Year – USD 101 million (`

  (i)  subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Limited situated at Bhimpore in Daman, Ankleshwar, L-1, D-4, 
Chikhalthana and Biotech Park, Waluj in Aurangabad (except book debts and current assets).

  (ii)  subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.
   Further, the Company has made an application to Reserve Bank India for obtaining its approval to create a subservient charge on 

fixed assets of the Company situated at all locations except Baddi and Kadaiya in Daman.
 

the reschedulement. The management is of the opinion that the remaining lenders will also accede to the reschedulement and 
accordingly, has treated the loan as long term borrowing. 



Consolidated

  The loan carries an interest of LIBOR plus 2.15% p.a.
 

this prepayment the balance loan of USD 212.50 million of the loan is repayable in quarterly installments from February 2013 to  
May 2016.

 (V)  The rupee denominated term loan from others amounting to ` 1.88 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.88 crore) is secured by first charge on 
pari passu basis by hypothecation of movable properties of the company (except book debts) at all locations. This term loan from 
others with interest rate of 2% p.a. is repayable in 10 equal half yearly installments beginning 1 year after completion of the project.

 (VI) Interest free sales tax deferral loan is repayable in the month of May every year. This loan is repayable by May 2019.
 (VII)  Loans from others with interest rate of 3% p.a. is repayable in 10 annual installment. Loans amounting ` 1.32 crore (Previous Year –  

` 1.89 crore) is repayable by June 2019 and the balance ` 3.82 crore (Previous Year – ` 4.24 crore) by October 2021.

  During the previous year:
  (A) Debentures were redeemable at par in four annual installments of `
   Debentures were secured by first charge on pari-passu basis:
   (i)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets at Plot No. L-1, D-4, Chikhalthana 

Waluj in Aurangabad.
   (ii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets situated at Jagraon in Punjab.
   (iii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets of Company’s wholly owned 

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.
    and by way of second charge on pari passu basis on current assets of the company at all locations.
  (B)  Term Loans of Wockhardt Limited were secured as under:
   (i)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated term loans from banks/

financial institutions amounting to ` 482.98 crore as on March 31, 2012 were secured by first charge on pari passu 
basis and rupee denominated term loans from banks/financial institutions amounting to `
by third charge on pari passu basis:

    (i)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets at Plot No. L-1, D-4, 

Park H-14/2, MIDC Waluj in Aurangabad. 
    (ii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets situated at Jagraon in Punjab.
    (iii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets of Company’s wholly owned 

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad. 
     Further, loans amounting to ` 482.98 crore as on March 31, 2012 were secured by second charge on pari passu basis 

and loans amounting to `
current assets of the company at all locations.

   (ii)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated term loans from banks 
amounting to `

Bhimpore in Daman and Biotech Park H-14/2, MIDC Waluj in Aurangabad and hypothecation of current assets of 
the Company at all locations.

    (ii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets situated at Jagraon in Punjab.
    (iii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets of Company’s wholly owned 

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.
    (iv)  the Company was in the process of creating charge on immovable property at Plot No. 138, Ankleshwar in Gujarat 

and movable assets of the Company at all locations.
   (iii)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated loans from others amounting 

to `

Bhimpore in Daman, Plot No. 138, Ankleshwar and Biotech Park H-14/2, MIDC Waluj in Aurangabad and by way 
of hypothecation of current assets of the company at all locations.

    (ii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets situated at Jagraon in Punjab.
    (iii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets of Company’s wholly owned 

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.
    (iv)  the Company was in the process of creating charge on movable assets of the Company at all locations.
   (iv)  Terms of repayment of term loans were as under:
    (i)  Rupee term loans and Working capital term loans from banks with interest rate of 10% p.a. were repayable in 24 

quarterly installments by April 2016.
    (ii)  Priority loans from banks with interest rate of 12% p.a. were repayable in 8 quarterly equal installments, by June 2012.
    (iii)  Short term loans from banks with interest rate of 10% p.a. were repayable in 20 quarterly equal installments by 

October 2018.
   (v)  Terms of repayment of rupee denominated term loans from others are as under:
     Term loan from others amounting `

20 quarterly installments by October 2018 as per CDR scheme.
   (vi)  Loans amounting to ` 906.22 crore as on March 31, 2012 were also secured by irrevocable personal guarantee by H.F. 

Khorakiwala, Chairman and corporate guarantee by Palanpur Holdings and Investments Private Limited.

as on March 31, 2012.
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 As at   
March 31,  

2013 
` in crore

 As at  
March 31, 

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore 

 As at  
March 31, 

2012  
USD in million

6. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITIES (Net) 

 Deferred tax liabilities 

 Difference between depreciation on block of 
assets 

 160.87  29.64  129.66  25.51 

 Research and development cost – –   109.39  21.52 
 Pension scheme –  –   1.32 
 TOTAL (A)  160.87  29.64  48.35 
 Deferred tax assets

 Provision for Gratuity  5.44  1.00  5.05  0.99 
 Provision for Leave Encashment  7.40  1.36  5.94 
 Deferred expenses  149.63  27.57  83.18  16.36 
 Unabsorbed losses  2.08  0.38  34.53 
 Provision for Bonus  0.30  0.06  0.24  0.05 
 Lease rent equalisation  0.98  0.18 –  –  
 Provision for Doubtful Debts  19.24  3.54  15.81  3.11 
 TOTAL (B)  185.07  34.09 

  Net deferred tax (asset)/liability as of the  
year end (A-B)  (24.20)  (4.45)  101.00  19.88 

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

 (1)  Provision for employee benefits  
(Refer note 33)

  Leave encashment (unfunded)  14.39  2.65  14.80  2.91 
  Gratuity (unfunded)  11.69  2.15  14.10 
  Provision for pension/other benefits  21.04  3.88  33.31  6.55 

 47.12  8.68  62.21  12.23 
 (2) Other provisions

   Provision for other expenses (Refer note 
below)  22.73  4.19  22.28  4.38 

 22.73  4.19  22.28  4.38 
  TOTAL  69.85  12.87  84.49  16.61 

 Note:

 Provision for other expenses mainly includes claims for damages due to loss of margin on generic of ART 50 in earlier years.

 As at   
March 31,  

2013 
` in crore

 As at  
March 31, 

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore 

 As at  
March 31, 

2012  
USD in million

8. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

 SECURED

  Loans repayable on demand

 Working capital facilities from banks  182.00  33.53  260.80  51.31 
 TOTAL  182.00  33.53  260.80  51.31 

 (A)  The working capital facilities amounting to `  
way of:

  (i)  First charge on pari passu basis on present and future stock of raw materials, consumables, spares, semi-finished goods, 
finished goods and book debts.

  (ii)  Second charge on pari passu basis by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets, 

Bhimpore in Daman and Biotech Park H-14/2, B-15/2, both at MIDC Waluj, and E-1/1 at MIDC, Shendra in Aurangabad and 
Jagraon in Punjab.

 ` `
Laboratories Limited is secured by charge over all of its assets.

 (C) During previous year:
  (a)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the working capital facilities amounting to ` 222.28 crore 

as on March 31, 2012 availed by Wockhardt Limited were secured by way of second charge on pari passu basis: 
   (i)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets at Plot No. L-1, D-4, Chikhalthana 

Waluj in Aurangabad.
   (ii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets situated at Jagraon in Punjab.



Consolidated

   (iii)  by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets of Company’s wholly owned 
subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad;

    and by way of first charge on pari passu basis on current assets of the Company at all locations. 
  (b)  Loans were also secured by irrevocable personal guarantee by H.F. Khorakiwala, Chairman and corporate guarantee by 

Palanpur Holdings and Investments Private Limited.
  

March 31, 2012 in their personal capacity.

 As at   
March 31,  

2013 
` in crore

 As at  
March 31, 

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore 

 As at  
March 31, 

2012  
USD in million

9. TRADE PAYABLES

 Trade Payables  634.15  116.84  540.80  106.39 
 TOTAL  634.15  116.84  540.80  106.39 
10. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 5)  413.32  76.14  314.21  61.82 
 Current maturities of finance lease obligations –  –  0.06  0.01 
 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  4.71  0.87  5.08  1.00 
 Interest accrued and due on borrowings –  –   0.02 –   
 Unpaid dividends  0.83  0.15  1.04  0.20 
  Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible 

–  –   211.04  41.52 
 Other payables
  Security Deposit  18.23  3.36  15.33  3.02 
  Provision for Recompense –  –   160.00  31.48 
  Other liabilities 251.55 46.34 195.52 38.46
  Employee liabilities 43.35 7.99 25.10 4.94
  Creditors for Statutory dues 31.04 5.72 6.66 1.31
  Creditors for Capital goods 26.93 4.96 44.32
 TOTAL  789.96  145.53  192.48 

 Note:

 (a)  In accordance with the orders passed by Hon’ble High Court of Bombay, the Company has repaid entire amount outstanding along 
with interest to the FCCB holders in August 2012 and has complied with the orders of Hon’ble High Court of Bombay. Accordingly, 
the winding-up petition filed by the Trustees to the FCCB before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court has been withdrawn.

   Further, under the directions of the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay, the Company has deposited USD 2.29 million (` 12.12 crore) in 
the UK Court towards the disputed portion of the claim by the FCCB holders primarily pertains to the Withholding Tax deducted 
by the Company on the default interest paid to the FCCB holders u/s 196C of Income Tax Act, 1961. This amount has been 
included under “Note 19 – Short term Loans and Advances”.

 As at   
March 31,  

2013 
` in crore

 As at  
March 31, 

2013  
USD in million 

 As at  
March 31,  

2012 
 ` in crore 

 As at  
March 31, 

2012  
USD in million

11. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

 Provision for employee benefits 

 Gratuity (unfunded) (Refer note 33)  5.06  0.93  0.29 
 Leave Encashment (unfunded)  8.08  1.49  0.49 

 13.14  2.42  3.94 
 Other provisions 

 10.05  1.85  24.41  4.80 
  Provision for tax, net of advance tax  

 94.98  17.50  82.35  16.20 
 Proposed dividend on preference shares  0.03  0.01  0.22  0.04 
 Tax on preference shares dividend  0.01 –  0.04  0.01 
 Proposed dividend on equity shares  54.79  10.09 –  –  
 Tax on equity shares dividend  9.31  1.72 –  – 
 Provision for others  2.45  0.45 –  –  

 171.62  31.62  21.05 
 TOTAL  184.76  34.04  110.96  21.83 

 Notes:

 (a)  Provision for Sales Return on Date Expiry – opening balance ` 24.41 crore (Previous Year – ` 18.09 crore), additions during the year 
` ` ` ` 8.38 crore), closing 
balance ` 10.05 crore (Previous Year – ` 24.41 crore).

   Provision has been recognised for expected sales return on date expiry of products sold during last two years. It is expected that 
all of this would be incurred within two years of the balance sheet date.

 (b)  Provision for tax after netting off advance tax of ` ` 183.29 crore). Tax assets and liabilities are in 
accordance with respective countries Tax Legislations.
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12. FIXED ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

PARTICULARS As at  

April 1, 

2012

Additions Disposals Exchange 

Gain/ 

(Loss)

As at  

March 31, 

2013

As at  

April 1, 

2012

Depreciation 

charge for  

the year* 

Impairment 

Losses

Deduction/ 

Transfer

Exchange 

Gain/ 

(Loss)

As at  

March 31, 

2013

As at  

March 31, 2013

As at  

March 31, 2012

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

` in  

crore

USD in 

million

` in  

crore

USD in 

million

Tangible Assets

Freehold Land –  –   0.49  71.68 –  –  –   –  –   –   71.68  13.21  14.01 

Leasehold land  22.40  –  (2.44)  0.08  20.04  1.66  0.23 –   –  –   1.89  18.15  3.34  4.08 

Buildings  330.48  20.01  (15.60)  5.24  340.13  101.64  8.82 –   (15.58)  2.04  96.92  243.21  44.81  228.84  45.02 

Electrical Fittings  0.11 –  – –   0.11  0.01 –  –  –  0.08  0.03  0.01  0.04  0.01 

Plant and Equipment  1,258.36  (11.05)  6.82  1,361.72  518.40  66.43 –  0.32  4.28  589.43  772.29  142.29 

Furniture and Fixtures  40.28  3.00 –   0.46  43.74  21.88  2.80 –  –   0.40  25.08  18.66  3.44  18.40  3.62 

Vehicles  5.13  2.19  (0.25)  0.02  7.09  4.15  0.43 –  (0.22)  0.02  4.38  2.71  0.50  0.98  0.19 

Office equipment  63.34  (1.64)  1.96  66.33  39.89 –   (1.56)  1.56  43.62  22.71  4.18  23.45  4.61 

Information Technology 
Equipments  49.20  52.51 –   (9.61)  0.63  48.26  0.94  0.17  0.26  0.05 

TOTAL  1,844.06  141.16  (40.95)  15.77  1,960.04  740.20  87.18 –   (26.65)  8.93  809.66  1,150.38  211.95  1,103.86  217.16 

Previous Year  1,866.58  209.13  1,844.06 –   (296.19)  1,103.86 

Intangible Assets

Goodwill – –  14.60  1,950.31  602.55 –    621.21 –   0.20  1,223.96  726.35  133.83  1,333.16  262.28 

Brands/Trademarks/Technical 
know-how  (143.35)  26.42  332.50  31.86 –  9.01  242.46  90.04  16.59  124.14  24.42 

Computer software  31.10  18.16  2.82  0.82  52.90  20.92  5.81 –  2.59  30.07  22.83  4.21  10.18  2.00 

TOTAL  2,367.54  66.86  (140.53)  41.84  2,335.71  900.06  37.67  621.21  (72.41)  9.96  1,496.49  839.22  154.63  1,467.48  288.70 

Previous Year  (64.24)  221.88  560.26  46.26  333.50  (62.39)  22.43  900.06 

Capital work-in-progress (Refer 
note (a) below)  490.94  90.45  98.12 

Intangible assets under 
Development (Refer note (a) 
below and note 29) –  –    403.54 

TOTAL  4,211.60  208.02  (181.48)  57.61  4,295.75  1,640.26  124.85  621.21  (99.06)  18.89  2,306.15  2,480.54  457.03  3,473.63  683.37 

TOTAL (Previous Year)  4,048.65  236.96  4,211.60  1,468.43  122.51  333.50  (358.58)  1,640.26 

* includes amount ` `

Note:

(a)  Addition to capital work-in-progress and intangibles under development includes expenditure incurred during construction period pending allocation aggregating ` 0.11 crore (Previous Year – ` 161.36 crore). These expenses include Material 
Consumption ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 5.44 crore), Employee cost aggregating ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 29.53 crore), Interest expenses ` 0.11 crore (Previous Year – ` ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 5.11 crore) and Operating expenses 
aggregating ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 103.96 crore) [Stores and spares ` Nil (Previous Year – ` ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 3.81 crore), Repairs and Maintenance ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 1.24 crore), Clinical trial expenses ` Nil (Previous 
Year – ` 55.04 crore), Legal and professional charges ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 20.29 crore), General Expenses ` Nil (Previous Year – `

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 ` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

13. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 Other than trade (unquoted)

  443,482 (Previous Year – 443,482) Shares of 
Bharuch Eco-Aqua Infrastructure Limited of  
` 10 each fully paid-up  0.44  0.08  0.44  0.09 

  6,300 (Previous Year – 6,300) Shares of Bharuch 
Enviro Infrastructure Limited of ` 10 each fully 
paid-up  0.01 –   0.01 –

  Nil (Previous Year – 1,000) Shares of Saraswat  
Co-operative Bank Limited of ` 10 each fully 
paid-up –  –   0.001 –   

  Nil (Previous Year – 300) Shares of SKR 100
 –  –   1.61  0.32 

 Investment in associate

  

  2.18  0.40  88.69 

 TOTAL  2.63  0.48 



Consolidated

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

14. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

 Capital Advances 

  Unsecured, considered good  42.73  7.87  32.68  6.43 
 42.73  7.87  32.68  6.43 

 Security Deposits

   Unsecured, considered good [includes 
deposits with Related parties ` 49.25 crore 
(Previous Year – `
note 32

 62.39  11.50  59.98  11.80 

 62.39  11.50  59.98  11.80 
  Loans and advances to related parties

  Unsecured, considered good
  Loan to Fellow subsidiary (Refer note 32) 21.05 3.88  20.04  3.94 

21.05 3.88  20.04  3.94 
   Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit 

entitlement  37.36  6.88  69.55  13.68 
 Other advances 37.21 6.86  5.06 
 TOTAL  200.74  36.99  40.91 
15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 Margin money*  5.01  0.92 –  –  
 TOTAL  5.01  0.92 –  –  

 * Margin on Letter of Credits (LCs) and Guarantees under lien ` 5.01 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil).

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

16. INVENTORIES

 Raw Materials and components  314.99  58.04  54.84 
 Goods-in transit  11.76  2.17 

 Total Raw Materials and components  326.75  60.21  316.39  62.24 
 Work-in-progress  121.03  22.30  94.38 
 Stock-in-trade  79.51  14.65  110.22  21.68 
 Finished goods  503.33  92.74  343.19 
 Stores and spares  28.21  5.20  24.38  4.80 
 TOTAL  1,058.83  195.10  888.56 

 Note:
  Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

 Trade receivables outstanding for a period 

less than six months

 Unsecured, considered good  935.63  172.38 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful 1.85  0.34  4.24  0.83 
 937.48  172.72  143.10 

 Trade receivables outstanding for a period 

exceeding six months

 Unsecured, considered good  22.83  4.21  35.53  6.99 
 Unsecured, considered doubtful 46.98  8.66  49.05  9.65 

69.81 12.87  84.58  16.64 
 Less: Provision for doubtful debts (48.83)  (9.00) (53.29) (10.48)

20.98 3.87 31.29 6.16 
 TOTAL  958.46  176.59  149.26 
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As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Balances with banks

  On current account 997.96  183.87  688.51  135.45
   Deposits with original maturity of less than 

3 months  51.12  9.42 –  –  
  Unpaid dividend accounts 0.83  0.15  1.04  0.20 
 Cash on hand  0.10  0.02  0.11  0.02 

 1,050.01  193.46  689.66
 Other bank balances

  Deposits with original maturity more than  
3 months but less than 12 months  0.27  0.05  0.16 

 Margin money (Refer note below) 45.78 8.43 9.54 1.88
46.05 8.48 10.33 2.04

 TOTAL  1,096.06  201.94  699.99 

 Note:

  Margin money of ` ` 9.54 crore) are under lien being margin on Letter of Credits (LCs) and guarantees.

As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 ` in crore 

 As at  

March 31,  

2013  

 USD in million

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
` in crore

 As at  
March 31,  

2012  
 USD in million 

19. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 (1)  Loans and advances to related parties  

(refer note below)  4.35  0.80  1.28  0.25 
  Unsecured, considered good  4.35  0.80  1.28  0.25 
 (2)  Other short term loans and advances

   Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or 
for value to be received

   Unsecured, considered good  
(Refer note 10(a))  72.61  13.38  43.85  8.63 

  Unsecured, considered doubtful  14.30  2.63  29.36 
  Less: Provision for doubtful advances  (14.30)  (2.63) (29.36)

 72.61  13.38  43.85  8.63 
  Advances to suppliers  65.97  12.15  49.39 
   Balances with statutory/government 

authorities  67.29  12.40  36.12 
   Other short term advances (including 

loans to employees)  3.36  0.62  3.63 
 209.23  38.55  132.99 

  TOTAL  213.58  39.35  26.42 

  Note:

   The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had approved a remuneration of ̀
from January 1, 2009, based on the application made by the Company to the Central Government for payment of remuneration in 
excess of limits specified in Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956, to Dr. H. F. Khorakiwala – Chairman. As the said approval was 
not in line with remuneration proposed and approved by the shareholders, the Company had once again made an application 
to the Central Government for re-consideration of the same which is pending. Accordingly, the remuneration paid to Dr. H. F. 
Khorakiwala in excess of the above approval for earlier years amounting to ` 1.28 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.28 crore) has been 
shown as recoverable. 

   Further, the applications for approval of payment of managerial remuneration to Dr. H.F. Khorakiwala – Chairman, Dr. M.H. 
Khorakiwala – Managing Director and Dr. H.H. Khorakiwala – Executive Director amounting to ` 4.50 crore, ` 2.40 crore and  
` 2.40 crore per annum respectively have been made to the Central Government during the year. Pending approval, the Company 
has shown the excess payment, during current year, over the permissible limits specified in Schedule XIII of the Companies Act 
amounting `



Consolidated

 For the  

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 

 March 31, 

2013 

 USD in million

 For the 
 year ended  

March 31, 
2012  

` in crore 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  

 USD in million
20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  

 Sale of products  5,612.18  1,034.03  853.60 
 Less: Excise duty  (5.77)  (1.06)  (3.84)

 5,606.41  1,032.97  4,335.03  852.84 
 Sale of services  3.01  0.55  3.04 
 TOTAL  5,609.42  1,033.52  4,350.50  855.88 
21. OTHER INCOME 

  Dividend Income* 
* ` 9,450 (Previous Year – ` 6,300)

–  –  – –  

 Profit/(Loss) on sale of assets  (2.79)  (0.51)  1.10  0.22 
 Interest Income  30.81  5.68  9.64  1.90 
 Miscellaneous income (Refer note below)  23.19  4.27 

 TOTAL  51.21  9.44  23.31  4.59 

 Note:

 Miscellaneous income includes liabilities no more payable of ` 6.44 crore (Previous Year – ` 3.05 crore).

 For the  

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 

 March 31, 

2013 

 USD in million

 For the 
 year ended  

March 31, 
2012  

` in crore 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  

 USD in million
22.  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED 

GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND  

STOCK-IN-TRADE

 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

 Opening Inventories

  Finished goods/Stock-in-trade  428.06  78.87  366.31 
  Work-in-progress  94.38  17.39  55.40  10.90 
  Less: Excise duty on opening stock  (0.92)  (0.17)  (0.83)  (0.16)

 521.52  96.09  420.88  82.81 
 Closing Inventories

  Finished goods/Stock-in-trade  (582.84)  (107.39)  (428.06)  (84.21)
  Work-in-progress  (121.03)  (22.30)  (94.38)
  Less: Excise duty on closing stock  2.08  0.38  0.92  0.18 

 (701.79)  (129.31)  (521.52)  (102.60)
 TOTAL  (180.27)  (33.22)  (100.64)
 Note:  Inventory of Finished goods pertaining 

to Discontinued Operations and 

excluded from above:

  Opening Inventories (Gross of excise) 25.37 4.67 19.51 3.84
  Less: Excise duty on opening stock (0.17) (0.03) (0.02) –

25.20 4.64 19.49 3.84
  Closing Inventories (Gross of excise) – – (4.99)
  Less: Excise duty on closing stock – – 0.03

– – (25.20) (4.96)
23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

 Salaries and wages (Refer note 33)  511.02  94.15  466.55 
  Contribution to provident and other funds  

(Refer note 33)
 53.88  9.93  42.13  8.29 

  Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 
(ESOS) (Refer note 35)  25.82  4.76  10.20  2.01 

 Staff welfare expenses  65.18  12.01  54.03  10.63 
 TOTAL  655.90  120.85 
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 For the  
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 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 
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2013 
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2012  
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 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  
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24. FINANCE COSTS

 Interest expense

  on term loans  117.90  21.72  33.58 

  on debentures  17.43  3.21  26.24  5.16 

  others (Refer note below)  48.97  9.02  13.82 

 184.30  33.95  52.56 

 Other borrowing costs  31.07  5.72  1.84  0.36 

 TOTAL  215.37  39.67  269.02  52.92 

 Note:

  Interest others for the year ended March 31, 2012, includes premium on Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds ` 12.46 crore 
pertaining to earlier years.

 For the  

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 

 March 31, 

2013 

 USD in million

 For the 
 year ended  

March 31, 
2012  

` in crore 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  

 USD in million

25. OTHER EXPENSES

 Travelling and conveyance charge  71.91  13.25  61.58  12.11 

 Freight and forwarding  96.39  17.76  14.31 

 Sales promotion and other selling cost  159.45  29.38  112.62 

 Commission on sales  35.90  6.61  29.39 

 Power and fuel  97.08  17.89  80.38  15.81 

 60.05  11.06  2.50 

 Rates and taxes  13.14  2.42  20.00  3.93 

 Repairs and maintenance 

 Buildings  6.05  1.11  6.53  1.28 

 Plant and machinery  21.52  3.96  18.21  3.58 

 Others  12.16  2.24  14.89  2.93 

 Stores and spare parts consumed  69.58  12.82  9.98 

 Insurance  25.88  4.77  19.08 

 Manufacturing expenses  32.03  5.90  4.85 

 Consultancy charges  76.16  14.03 

 Bad debts  (0.80)  (0.15)  (2.03)  (0.40)

 Product development expenses written off  1.49  0.27  10.58 

 Directors' sitting fees  0.11  0.02  0.13  0.03 

 Material for test batches  30.73  5.66 –  –  

 Provision for doubtful debts 1.48 0.27  1.81  0.36 

 (Reversal of provision)/provision for doubtful 
advances  (15.06)  (2.77)  29.36 

 Miscellaneous expenses 320.36 59.03  35.36 

 TOTAL  1,115.61  205.53  866.01 

26. EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND 

DEVELOPMENT

Capital*  21.84  4.02  33.99 

Revenue (charged to Statement of Profit and 
Loss during the year)  353.97  65.22  14.81 

 375.81  69.24  248.04  48.80 

* Previous year includes revenue expenditure capitalised as ‘Intangible assets under Development’.
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27. (a) Annual commitments for lease payments 

under non-cancellable operating leases 

for certain office premises and plant and 

machinery:

 Less than 1 year 51.92 9.57  9.90  1.95 

 More than 1 year but less than 5 years 64.38 11.86  1.50 

 More than 5 years 1.73 0.32  0.08  0.02 

 118.03 21.75

(b) Annual commitments for lease payments 

under finance leases are:

 Less than 1 year – –   0.06  0.01 

 More than 1 year but less than 5 years –  –  –  –  

 More than 5 years –   –   –  –  

–  –   0.06  0.01 

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of earnings per share (EPS) 
(basic and diluted) are based on the earnings 
and number of shares as computed below:

Reconciliation of earnings  

Profit after tax  1,594.12  293.73

Less:  Dividend (including tax on dividend) 
payable on preference shares  (0.04)  (0.01)  (0.09)  (0.02)

Net Profit for calculation of  

basic/diluted EPS  1,594.08  293.72  342.62 

Reconciliation of number of shares No. of Shares No. of Shares

Weighted average number of shares in 
calculating Basic EPS  109,475,239  109,435,903 

Add:

Weighted average number of shares under 
option ESOS  1,737,512 

Weighted average number of equity shares in 
calculating diluted EPS  111,212,751  109,980,633 

Earnings per share (face value ` 5/- each)

Earnings per share – Basic `/USD  145.61  2.68  31.31  0.62 

Earnings per share – Diluted `/USD  143.34  2.64  31.15  0.61 

  Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) are not considered for calculating diluted earnings per share 
since conversion of shares is contingent in nature and number of shares cannot be currently ascertained, being dependent on price of 
equity shares as per SEBI formula prevailing on the date on which the holders of OCCRPS are entitled to convert.

29.  Hitherto, the Group had recognized product development cost as an intangible asset as and when incurred. The management has 
reassessed the recognition criteria for capitalization of development cost based on its most recent experience of regulatory approvals, 
clinical trials, economic uncertainties, industry experience and business plans. This review indicates that the recognition criteria may not 
be met till the time regulatory approvals are received. Hence, the Group has revised its recognition criteria for development costs and 
auditors have relied on the management judgment being technical in nature. Accordingly, the Group:

 (a)  has expensed off the carried forward cost of products under development as at June 30, 2012, amounting to ` 436.88 crore, to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Exceptional Item’.

 (b)  has charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, product development expenditure incurred during the period July 2012 to March 
2013 amounting to `
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30.  Exceptional items other than mentioned above for the year ended March 31, 2013 mainly comprises of Profit on divestment of nutrition 
business amounting to ` ` 621.21 crore, impairment of intangible assets of  
` ` ` 1.61 crore and other 
expenses including redundancy in France amounting to ` 22.16 crore.

  Exceptional items of previous year mainly comprises of settlement of loans and disputed derivatives liabilities `
for CDR recompense ` 105.56 crore for period April 15, 2009 to March 31, 2011, impairment of goodwill on consolidation ` 333.5 crore 
and gain on restructuring of Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. and its subsidiaries ` 100 crore.

  Recompense provision made in previous year has been reclassified as interest ` 54.44 crore being interest pertaining to FY 11-12 and 
balance provision of ` 105.56 crore has been considered as exceptional item being, pertaining to period earlier to FY 11-12.

31. SEGMENT INFORMATION

 (i) Information about Primary Segments

  The Group is primarily engaged in pharmaceutical business which is considered as the only reportable business segment as per 

 (ii) Information about Secondary Segments

  Sales by market – The following is the distribution of the Group’s sale (including discontinued operations) by geographical market 
regardless of where the goods were produced:

  Geographical segment  For the  

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 

 March 31, 

2013 

 USD in million

 For the 
 year ended  

March 31, 
2012  

` in crore 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  

 USD in million

 India  1,101.61  202.97  230.66 

 USA  2,897.87  533.92  1,908.02 

 Europe  1,370.74  252.55  244.26 

 Rest of the World and CIS  350.45  64.57 

 TOTAL  5,720.67  1,054.01  4,613.80 

  The following table shows the carrying amount of segment assets and addition to fixed assets by geographical area in which the 
assets are located:

 For the  

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 ` in crore 

 For the 

 year ended 

 March 31, 

2013 

 USD in million

 For the 
 year ended  

March 31, 
2012  

` in crore 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31,  
2012  

 USD in million

 Carrying amount of segment assets

 India 2,435.43 448.71 2,669.86 525.25 

 USA 1,218.82 224.56 164.03

 Europe 2,286.68 421.31 526.95

 Rest of the World and CIS 99.12 18.26 14.11

 TOTAL  6,040.05  1,112.84  6,253.84  1,230.34 

 Additions to tangible and intangible assets

 India  172.53 31.79 216.04 42.50

 USA 22.22 4.09 8.68

 Europe 13.27 2.44 0.02 –

 Rest of the World and CIS – –   0.02 –  

 TOTAL 208.02 38.32 44.21

 (iii) Notes:

  Geographical segments:

  Secondary segmental reporting is performed on the basis of the geographical location of customers. The management views the 
Indian market and export markets as distinct geographical segments.

  Segment assets:

  Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of debtors, inventories, advances and fixed 
assets, net of allowances.
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 (a) Parties where control exists

  Holding Company

   Khorakiwala Holdings and Investments Private Limited
 (b) Other related party relationships where transactions have taken place during the year

  Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence

  Palanpur Holdings and Investments Private Limited
  Wockhardt Hospitals Limited
  Merind Limited
  Wockhardt Foundation
  Fellow Subsidiary

  Carol Info Services Limited
  Associate Company

  Swiss Biosciences AG
  Key managerial personnel

  Dr. Habil Khorakiwala, Chairman
  Dr. Huzaifa Khorakiwala, Executive Director 
  Dr. Murtaza Khorakiwala, Managing Director
 (c) Transactions with related parties during the year

31.03.2013 

` in crore

31.03.2013 

USD in million

31.03.2012 
` in crore

31.03.2012 
USD in million

Fellow Subsidiary

Loan Licensee charges paid  7.64  1.41  3.54 
Rent paid  51.13  9.42  5.34  1.05 
Loan Given  1.58  0.29  1.22  0.24 
Loan Repaid  0.57  0.11 –  –   
Interest Received  1.75  0.32  1.35 
Key managerial personnel

Remuneration paid  1.77  0.33  1.13 
[Remuneration paid to Chairman `
(Previous Year – ` 1.85 crore), 
Remuneration paid to Managing Director  
` 0.60 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.95 crore), 
Remuneration paid to Executive Director  
` 0.60 crore (Previous Year – `
Irrevocable personal guarantee given by 
Chairman – –  1,128.50  222.01 
Enterprise over which Key Managerial 

Personnel exercise significant influence

Rent paid [Palanpur Holdings and 
Investments Private Limited ` 0.08 crore 
(Previous Year – ` 0.08 crore), Merind Limited 
` 0.01 crore (Previous Year – `  0.09  0.02  0.03 
Reimbursement of Expenses to Merind 
Limited  1.76  0.32  2.06  0.40 
Corporate guarantee given by Palanpur 
Holdings and Investments Private Limited – –  1,128.50  222.01 
Donation given to Wockhardt Foundation  0.64  0.12 –   –  

(d) Related party balances

Payable to fellow subsidiary  (39.10)  (7.20)  (3.85)
Receivable from fellow subsidiary 67.55  12.45  66.54  13.09 
Payable to enterprise over which key 

managerial personnel exercise significant 

influence

Payable  to Merind Limited  (1.85)  (0.34)  (0.29)
Enterprises over which Key Managerial 

Personnel exercise significant influence

Security Deposit given to Palanpur Holdings 
and Investments Private Limited  2.75  0.51  0.54 
Receivable from Key managerial personnel

[Chairman ` 3.39 crore (Previous Year –  
` 1.28 crore), Managing Director ` 0.48 crore 
(Previous Year – ` Nil), Executive Director  
` 0.48 crore (Previous Year – `

 4.35  0.80  1.28  0.25 
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33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 (A) Disclosure in respect of Wockhardt Limited

2013

` in crore

2012
` in crore

Defined Benefit Plans: Gratuity

(Non-funded)

Gratuity
(Non-funded)

I. Expenses recognized during the year:

1. Current Service Cost  2.78  2.32 
2. Interest cost  1.36  1.16 
3. Actuarial Losses/(Gains)  (0.77)  (0.24)

Total Expenses  3.37  3.24 
II. Net Asset/(Liability) recognized as at balance sheet date:

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation  16.75

2. Net Asset/(Liability)  (16.75)

III. Reconciliation of Net Asset/(Liability) recognized as at balance sheet date:

1. Net Asset/(Liability) at the beginning of year  (15.57)  (14.04)
2. Expense as per I above  3.37  3.24 
3. Net transfer out due to discontinuance of Nutrition business  (0.94) –  
4. Employer contributions  1.25

5. Net asset/(liability) at the end of the year  (16.75)

IV. Actuarial Assumptions:

1. Discount rate 7.75%

2. Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
3. Mortality Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

Ultimate

LIC (1994-96) 

Ultimate

 Notes:

  (a) Amounts recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in note 23 under “Salaries and Wages” 
and note 41 under “Total expenses” of Discontinued Operations:

   “Salaries and Wages” includes gratuity ` ` 2.96 crore), Leave Encashment ` 9.80 crore (Previous Year –  
`

  (b) The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

` in crore

April 2012-  

March 2013

April 2011-  
March 2012

April 2010-  
March 2011

January 2009-  
March 2010

January 2008-  
December 2008

(c) Details of gratuity for the 

current and previous four 

years are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation 16.75 14.04  11.00  11.28 
Surplus/(deficit)  (16.75)  (14.04)  (11.00)  (11.28)
Experience adjustment on 
plan liabilities (gain)/loss (0.30) 0.54  (0.69)  0.01 

  (d) Defined contribution plan:

   Amount recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in the note 23 – “Contribution to 
provident and other funds” and note 41 under “Total expenses” of Discontinued Operations of ` 12.86 crore (Previous Year –  
` 10.13 crore).

 (B) Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (In respect of Consolidated Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited)

   The group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the 

   An actuarial valuation of the pension scheme was carried out as at balance sheet date. The amount recognized as gain by 
the company is ` 4.60 crore (Previous Year – gain ` ` 21.04 crore (Previous Year –  
` 33.31 crore).

 (C)  Defined Contribution Pension Scheme (In respect of Consolidated Wockhardt UK Holdings Limited, Wockhardt UK Limited 

and Consolidated Wockpharma Ireland Limited)

   During the 12 month period, the group operated a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held 
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions 
payable by the group to the fund and amounted to ` 4.49 crore (Previous Year – ` 4.03 crore) and the outstanding pension liability 
as at March 31, 2013 was ` ` 0.52 crore).
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34. DISCLOSURE REGARDING UNHEDGED CURRENCY EXPOSURE

 The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Particulars Currency Amt. in Foreign 

Currency  

(in million)

 
` in crore

Amt. in Foreign 
Currency  

(in million)
 

` in crore
Trade Receivables ACU  0.17  0.92  1.66 

AUD  0.01  0.08  0.01 
EUR  3.34  23.20  18.35 
GBP  7.16  58.87  58.32 
USD  17.02  92.38 

Loans and Advances EUR  5.59  38.80  2.86  19.45 
USD  6.08  32.98  14.58 
CHF  5.09  29.00 – –
GBP  2.69  22.10  25.03  203.86 
JPY  12.23  0.70  6.43  0.40 
AED  0.23  3.40 –  –  

Trade Payables and Other 
Liabilities ACU –   –   0.001  0.01 

SGD –  –   0.001  0.005 
CAD –  –  0.003  0.01 
CHF  12.50  71.22  9.56 
EUR  6.66  46.23  5.26 
GBP  6.24  51.26  39.41  321.01 
JPY  3.07  0.18  35.11  2.18 
USD  16.60  90.09  14.40 
AED –  –   0.001  0.002 

Foreign Currency Convertible 
Bonds USD –  –   41.52  211.04 

35. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

 The Compensation Committee of the Board of directors of Wockhardt Limited has, under Wockhardt Stock Option Scheme-2011 (‘the 
Scheme’) approved the grant of Stock options convertible into equity shares of ` 5/- each as per the following:

 (a) at its meeting held on November 12, 2011, 1,540,000 Stock Options convertible into 1,540,000 equity shares.

Directors).
 As per the Scheme, the Compensation committee has granted 60,000 options @ `

@ ` 365/- per option (Grant 2), 1,420,000 options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 3), 350,000 options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 4) and 8,500 
options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 5) in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option 
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, to the selected employees (including Independent Directors) of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. The method of settlement is by issue of equity shares to the selected employees (including Independent 
Directors) who have accepted the options.

 The Scheme provides that these options would vest in tranches over a period as follows:

Period within which options will vest unto the participant Quantity

1 year from the date of grant of Options 185,000
1 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 202,500
2 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 442,250
2 year 9 months from the date of grant of Options
3 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 640,500
4 year 3 months from the date of grant of Options
4 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options
5 year 9 months from the date of grant of Options

1,898,500

shall be administered by the compensation committee of Board of directors.
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 Employee stock option activity under Scheme 2011 is as follows:

For the                        
year ended                 

March 31,  
2013

For the                        
year ended                 

March 31,  
2012

Outstanding at beginning of the year  1,540,000 –  
Granted during the year  358,500  1,540,000 
Lapsed during the year (re-issuable)  158,000 –  
Exercised during the year  147,500 –  
Outstanding at the end of the year  1,593,000  1,540,000 
Vested and exercisable at the end of the year  29,000 –  
No option have been forfeited during the year or in the previous year

Weighted average fair value of options on the date of grant:

Grant 1 –

Grant 2 –  142.60 
Grant 3 –  410.14 
Grant 4 894.56 –
Grant 5 1,949.76 –

 The Guidance Note on ‘Accounting for employee share based payments’ issued by ICAI (‘Guidance Note’) establishes financial accounting 
and reporting principles for share based payment plans for employees. The Guidance Note applies to employee share based payments, the 
grant date in respect of which falls on or after 1st April, 2005. The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account compensation 
expense arising from issuance of stock options to the employees. Had compensation cost been determined under the fair value approach 
described in the Guidance Note using the Black Scholes pricing model, the Company’s net income and basic and diluted earnings per share 
(as restated) would have been increased to the proforma amounts as set out below:

For the                        
year ended                 

March 31,  
2013

For the                        
year ended                 

March 31,  
2012

Net profit as reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,594.12

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense (intrinsic value method) 19.48 9.84 
Less: Stock-based employee compensation expense (fair value method) (20.23) (9.49)
Proforma net profit 1,593.37 343.06
Basic earnings per share as reported (`) 145.61 31.31 
Proforma basic earnings per share (`) 145.54 31.34
Diluted earnings per share as reported (`)  143.34 31.15 
Proforma diluted earnings per share (`)     143.27 31.18
The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options are:

(a) Grant 1, Grant 2 and Grant 3

Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 414.00 414.00
Expected life
 First vesting  1.50  1.50 
 Second vesting  1.88  1.88 
 Third vesting  2.88  2.88 
 Fourth vesting  3.88  3.88 
 Fifth vesting  4.88  4.88 
Risk free interest rate 8.00% 8.00%
Volatility   36% 36%
Weighted average exercise price (` Per share) 37.65 34.30
(b) Grant 4

Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 897.75 – 
Expected life
 First vesting  3.25 –  
 Second vesting  4.75 – 
 Third vesting  6.25 –  
 Fourth vesting  7.75 –
Risk free interest rate 8.35% – 
Volatility   51% –  
(c) Grant 5

Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 1,954.20 –
Expected life
 First vesting  1.50 –
Risk free interest rate 7.86% –  
Volatility 38% –  
Weighted average exercise price for Grant 4 and Grant 5 is ` 5/-.
Dividend yield has not been separately built in, as the stock prices for one year has been 
considered which factors for the price movement on account of the dividend.
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for ` 150.12 crore (Previous Year – ` 61.92 
crore) after deducting advance on capital account of ` 40.93 crore (Previous Year – ` 16.02 crore).

37. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 In accordance with buyback of shares done by Swiss Biosciences AG during December 2012, Wockhardt Bio AG has surrendered 

 Also, the Company has accounted for impairment loss of `
 Swiss Biosciences AG continues to be an associate company with holding interest of Wockhardt Bio AG @45%.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR

 (a)  Demands by Central Excise authorities in respect of Classification/Valuation/Cenvat Credit related disputes; stay orders have been 
obtained by the Company in case of demands which have been confirmed ` 9.62 crore (Previous Year – ` 5.18 crore). Further, 
demand from State Excise Authorities for excise duty on certain inputs disputed by the Company, ` 12.55 crore (Previous Year –  
` Nil). Customs duty demand of ` 0.35 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.35 crore) which has been disputed.

 (b) Demand by Income tax authorities ` ` 41.65 crore) disputed by the Company. 
 (c) Demand in respect of Sales tax matters ` 0.08 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.08 crore) which has been disputed.
 (d) Claims against Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of local body tax ` 10.28 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil).
 (e)  Under the directions of the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay, the Company has deposited USD 2.29 million (` 12.12 crore) in the UK 

Court towards the disputed portion of the claim by the FCCB holders that primarily pertains to the Withholding Tax deducted by 
Wockhardt Limited on the default interest paid to the FCCB holders u/s 196C of Income Tax Act, 1961.

 (f )  The Group is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, inquires and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from 
time to time in the ordinary course of business. The group believes that there are no such pending matters that are expected to 
have any material adverse effect on its financial statements in any given accounting period.

39. Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. including its subsidiaries were out of safeguard proceedings during previous year, but will be under 
review till 2018. The syndicated loan of EUR 91.1 million (` 632.61 crore) has been fully restructured during previous year.

 Further, a new product is under development and the launch is now expected in 2014, which is expected to improve performance and 
cash flows. 

 The Company has tested carrying value of goodwill on consolidation at Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. for impairment. The impairment 
testing indicated that the carrying value of goodwill was higher than its recoverable value and accordingly, the Company has recorded an 
impairment loss with respect to entire balance goodwill amounting to ` 621.21 crore at Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S.

40. Wockhardt Bio AG has outstanding loan of USD 196.88 million (` 1,068.54 crore) [Previous Year – USD 250 million (`

acceded to the reschedulement. The management is of the opinion that the remaining lenders will also accede to the reschedulement 
and accordingly, has treated the loan as long term borrowing.

41. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

  Pursuant to Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated August 2, 2011, the divestment of Nutrition business on a slump sale basis to 
Danone was completed on July 26, 2012. The Company along with its wholly owned subsidiary has received the entire consideration 
of ` 1,288.31 crore (including purchase price adjustment) towards this divestment. The profit on account of the aforesaid transaction 
amounting `

 Details of profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013*

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

Revenue from Operations  5,609.42  4,350.50  111.25  263.30  5,720.67  4,613.80 
Other Income  51.21  23.31  0.09  0.15  51.30  23.46 
Total Revenue  5,660.63  111.34  263.45  5,771.97 

Total expenses other than  
finance costs  3,669.09  3,109.83  88.87  3,757.96 

Finance costs  215.37  269.02  (0.04)  (0.15)  215.33 

Total expenses  3,884.46  88.83  3,973.29 

Profit before exceptional 
items and tax  1,776.17  994.96  22.51  55.53  1,798.68  1,050.49
Less:  Exceptional items 

(gain)/loss  (61.52) –  –   (61.52)

Profit before tax  1,837.69  521.19  22.51  55.53  1,860.20 

Tax expense:  258.21  7.30  13.39  265.51  235.13 
Profit after tax  1,579.48  299.45  15.21  42.14  1,594.69  341.59 

* Turnover, Expenses and profit before tax upto July 25, 2012.
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The carrying amount of assets and liabilities pertaining to the discontinued business are as follows:

As at  

July 25,  

2012

As at  
March 31,  

2012
Total Assets  111.86  86.92 
Total Liabilities  18.82 

42. Premium on redemption of preference shares will be provided for before redemption of the preference shares.

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Wockhardt Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1.  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wockhardt Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.  Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in  

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

from material misstatement. 
  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
 

in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness  
of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

4.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the 

generally accepted in India:
 (a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
 (b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
 (c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

capitalization of product development costs incurred by the Company, which being technical in nature has been relied upon by us. 

to ` 
` 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 

 a.  we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

of those books;
 c.  the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of account;
 d.  in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting Standards 

referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Act;
 e.  on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of 

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

WOCKHARDT LIMITED on the financial statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2013.

 
fixed assets.  

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Accordingly, certain fixed assets have 
been physically verified by the management during the year and discrepancies noticed on such verification, which were not 
material, have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

 (c)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been 
disposed off by the Company during the year.

is reasonable.

size of the Company and the nature of its business. 

physical verification carried out.
(iii) (a)  As informed, the Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to  companies, firms or other parties covered in 

 
(c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable.

 (b)  As informed, the Company has not taken any loan, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the 

(g) of the Order are not applicable.

commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and with 
regard to the sale of goods and services.  During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct any 

(v) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements 

have been so entered.
 (b)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of such 

contracts or arrangements exceeding value of  Rupees five lakhs have been entered during the year at prices which are reasonable 
having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the  Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(viii)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of products where, pursuant to the Rules made 

209 of the Act and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of the Company examined by us, in 

our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.
 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, investor 

duty, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the end of the year, for more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

 (c)  According to the records of the Company and as informed to us, there are no dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess that have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except as follows:

Name of the 

statute

Nature of dues Amount  

(` in crore)

Period to which the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute 

is pending

Act, 1944
0.04 April 1999 to August 1999 Commissioner Appeal

Penalty for classification February 2001 to February 2003
Differential Duty 2.19 Commissioner

0.03 Deputy Commissioner
Commissioner Appeals

Demand  and Penalty for 
classification

2.20

Demand and penalty for 
fire at Ankleshwar.

4.44



 

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai

Name of the 

statute

Nature of dues Amount  

(` in crore)

Period to which the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute 

is pending

Himachal 

Act

Duty demand notice Shimla High Court

Aurangabad 
Municipal 
Corporation

Demand under Local Bombay High Court

Demand under  
Section 143(3)

FY 2003-04 High Court

Demand under  
Section 143(3)
Demand under  
Section 143(3)

Commissioner of Income 

 
u/s 201/201(IA)

Commissioner of Income 

Penalty under  FY 2003-04 Commissioner of Income 

Penalty under  Commissioner of Income 

`

(x)   In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the Company are not more than fifty percent of its net worth. Further, the Company has not 
incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xi) (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the loan liabilities being restructured 
under the aegis of Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Scheme, there has been no default in repayment of principal and interest 
to CDR lenders as per the terms of CDR Scheme.

 (b)  With respect to the amount due towards Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds which were due for repayment in 

holders, the amounts outstanding along with interest on reducing balance by August, 2012. In accordance with the orders passed 
by Hon'ble High Court of Bombay, the Company has repaid entire amount along with interest on reducing balance to the FCCB 
holders by August 2012 and has complied with the orders of Hon'ble High Court of Bombay.  

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, the Company 
has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiv)  In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the 

(xvi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were raised.

(xvii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we 
report that funds raised on short-term basis to the tune of ` 
expenditure, Research & Development and repayment of borrowings.

(xviii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties 
and companies covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

(xix)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has created security in respect of debentures outstanding 
during the year. 

(xxi)   During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance 
of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.
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BALANCE SHEET

As at March 31, 2013
(All amounts in crore of Indian `)

 Notes  As at 

 March 31, 

2013 

 As at 
 March 31, 

2012 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE HOLDERS’ FUNDS

Share capital 2 353.34

Reserves and surplus 3 763.38

1,116.72

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowings 4 9.52

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 120.55

Long-term provisions 26.08

156.15

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings 163.17

469.30

Other current liabilities 9 1,174.65

Short-term provisions 10 87.33

1,894.45

TOTAL 3,167.32

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 11

876.86

 Intangible assets 59.76

 Capital work-in-progress 481.79

 Intangible assets under development –   

12 307.95

Long-term loans and advances 13 342.92

Other non-current assets 14 4.92 –   

2,074.20

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 527.59

206.63

Cash and bank balances 183.93

Short-term loans and advances 174.97

1,093.12

TOTAL 3,167.32

Significant accounting policies 1

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(All amounts in crore of Indian `)

 Notes  For the 

 year ended 
March 31, 

2013 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31, 
2012

REVENUE

Revenue from operations (gross) 19 2,476.95 2,300.94 

Less (5.77)

Revenue from operations (net) 2,471.18 

Other income 20 45.50 

TOTAL 2,516.68 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 32 859.30 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 33 261.43 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 21 (82.95)

22 301.07 

Finance costs 23 154.37 

Depreciation and amortization expense 11 80.77 

(19.84)

Other expenses 24 560.97 

TOTAL 2,115.12 

PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX 401.56 

Less
business ` 

(288.18)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 689.74 

 Current tax (167.57) –   

–

 Deferred tax credit/(charge) 84.59 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 606.76 

PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (BEFORE TAX) 42 23.60 

42  (7.66)  (13.39)

PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (AFTER TAX) 42 15.94 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 622.70 

`

 Basic ` 56.88 

 Diluted ` 55.99 

Significant accounting policies 1

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(All amounts in crore of Indian `)

 For the 

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31, 
2012 

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

713.34 

Depreciation and amortization expense 80.79 

Liabilities no more payable  (5.78)

Provision for doubtful debts  1.55 

Provision for doubtful advances  (15.06)

Bad Debts written off – 

 (19.84)

Loss on assets sold/write off of fixed assets (net) –  3.43 

Finance costs  154.33 

Wealth tax expense –  0.01 

Interest Income  (34.25)  (11.42)

Dividend Income (Refer note 20) – –

Investment written off (Refer note 12 (B)) – –

–

– 

–

 319.05 – 

 (607.23) – 

Product development expenses written off  1.49 

 25.82  10.20 

Operating profit before Working Capital changes 614.21

Movement in working capital:

 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (109.11)

 66.17 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances and other assets  (73.71)  (29.94)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities and provisions  1,022.82 

 115.86 

Cash Generated from Operations  1,636.24 

Income taxes paid  (207.31)

Net cash from Operating Activities (A)  1,428.93 

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets and Additions to Capital work-in-progress  (180.70)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  (0.01)  1.20 

Proceeds from sale of nutrition business  648.31 – 

Repayment by/(Loans to) companies/subsidiaries  23.55  (0.40)

Margin money under lien and Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months  (43.05)

Interest Received  34.25  11.42 

Dividend Received (Refer note 20)  –  – 

Net cash from/(used in) Investing Activities  (B)  482.35 



 

 For the 

 year ended  

 March 31, 

2013 

 For the 
 year ended  

 March 31, 
2012 

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  0.07 –

Premium on issue of shares  1.57 –

Preference shares redeemed  (317.15)  –

Premium on redemption of preference shares  (33.72) –

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  1.18 

Repayment of long-term borrowings  (1,114.59)

Short-term borrowings (net) (59.11) –

Finance costs  (318.62)

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)  (0.47)  (0.09)

Net cash used in Financing Activities  (C)  (1,840.84)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (A+B+C)  70.44 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at beginning of year  72.85 

 (0.58)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at end of year  142.71 

Component of cash and cash equivalents, as at March 31, 2013

Cash  0.10  0.11 

Balance with banks:

 – on current account (excluding unclaimed dividend accounts)  91.35 

 – on unclaimed dividend account (Refer note 4 below)  0.83  1.04 

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  50.43  – 

 142.71 

1.  All figures in bracket are outflow.

2.  Income taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

3.  Cash flow in respect of ordinary activities attributable to discontinued operations:

 Cash generated from Operating activities – ` `

 Cash flow provided by Investing activities – ` `

 Cash flow from Financing activities – ` 0.04 crore (Previous Year – `

As per our attached report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shailesh Haribhakti

Partner

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta
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Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

(All amounts in crore of Indian `, unless otherwise stated)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 (i) Basis of preparation

prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except in case of assets for which provision for impairment is 

with those used in the previous year.

 (ii) Use of estimates

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based 

 (a) Fixed assets and depreciation/amortisation

  Tangible assets:

  Depreciation/amortization:
  Depreciation is provided, using the straight line method, pro-rata to the period of use of assets, at the rates specified in Schedule 

rates used by the Company are as follows:

Assets Rates 

Leasehold land Over the period of lease

Buildings

Plant and Machinery

Furniture and Fixtures

  Fixed assets whose aggregate cost is `

  Intangible assets:
  Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

ten years, which is based on their estimated useful life.

 (b) Foreign currency translations

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount, the exchange 
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income 
or as expenses in the year in which they arise. 

  Premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or income over the life of 

exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income 
or as expense for the year.

 (c) Investments

  Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. Current 
investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are 
stated at cost. Provision is made to recognise a diminution, other than temporary, in the value of investments.



 

 (d) Inventories

average price. Finished goods and Work-in-progress is computed based on respective moving weighted average price of procured 
materials and appropriate share of labour and other manufacturing overheads.

  Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost also includes all charges incurred for bringing 

applicable, is included in the valuation of finished goods.

  Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at cost.

the sale.

 (e) Employee benefits

are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.

Credit Method at the end of each financial year. 

  Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based 

  Actuarial gains and losses are immediately taken to Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. 

 (f) Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. 

  Sale of Goods
  Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which coincides 

with dispatch of goods to customers. Revenues are recorded at invoice value, net of excise duty, sales tax, returns and trade 
discounts. 

  Sale of Services
  Revenues from services are recognised on completion of rendering of services.

  Out licensing fees and Assignment of New Chemical Entity

as generally accepted and agreed with the customers.

  Duty Drawback
  Duty drawback is recognized at the time of exports and the benefits in respect of advance license received by the Company against 

export made by it are recognized as and when goods are imported against them.

  Export Incentive

the year of export.

  Royalties
  Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

  Dividend and Interest
  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Interest income is recognized on a time 

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

 (g) Research and development

its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortised over the period of 

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

 (h) Impairment of Assets

impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of 
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 

future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss 
recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.
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 (i) Taxation

  Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the provisions of 

between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

  Deferred tax charge is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it has timing differences the reversal of which will result in sufficient income. 
In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised 
only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. 

is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

 (j) Leases

  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term are classified as 
operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

 (k) Financing/Borrowing cost

such assets, up to the date such assets are ready for their intended use. Other financing/borrowing costs are charged to Statement 
of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs are recognised immediately as an expense.

 (l) Employees Stock Option Cost

 (m) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow 

not wholly within the control of the Company or (2) present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements as this may result in the recognition of income that may never  
be realised.

 (n) Earnings per share

shareholders and share split.

 (o) Derivative Financial Instruments

with foreign currency fluctuations and interest rates. 

  As per the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) Announcement, accounting for derivative contracts, other than those 
 

are ignored.

 (p) Operating Cycle



 

 As at March 31, 2013  As at March 31, 2012

 Number of 

shares  Amount

Number of 
 shares Amount

2. SHARE CAPITAL

`  250,000,000  125.00 

Preference shares of `  2,000,000,000  1,000.00  2,000,000,000  1,000.00 

 1,125.00 

`

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the Year  109,435,903  54.72 

Add:  147,500  0.07  –  – 
Shares outstanding as at the end of the Year  109,583,403  54.79 

Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference shares of `
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the Year  446,549,949  223.27 

Add: Shares Issued during the Year  –  –  –  – 
Less: Shares redeemed during the Year  325,095,022  162.55  –  – 
Shares outstanding as at the end of the Year  121,454,927  60.72 

shares of `
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the Year  1,076,198,988  538.10 

Add: Shares Issued during the Year – –

Less: Shares redeemed during the Year  600,539,047  300.27  –  – 
Shares outstanding as at the end of the Year  475,659,941  237.83 

TOTAL  706,698,271  353.34 

 Notes:

`

 (b)  Issue of Preference Shares as per Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Scheme:

`

Preference Shares are as follows:

on the following terms and conditions: 

    Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with CDR scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year at 
premium amounting to `

Series 2) issued bilaterally to various Banks, on the following terms and conditions: 

    Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with CDR scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year at 
premium amounting to `
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Shares shall be redeemed at the point of exit. 
   Pursuant to the modifications in the terms in line with CDR scheme, the above shares were redeemed during the year.

 (c) Shares held by holding company:

holding company.

(d) Details of equity shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% of total equity shares:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

No. of  

Shares held

% of  

Holding 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding 

Limited 69,716,132 63.62

Dartmour Holdings Private Limited 6,828,325 6.23

(e) Details of Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) held by each shareholders holding more 

than 5% of total NCRPS:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

No. of  

Shares held

% of  

Holding 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding 

Limited  160,000,000 33.64

 Indian Overseas Bank  104,563,437 21.98 9.90
 Union Bank of India  74,397,151 15.64

 Corporation Bank  50,929,498 10.71 – –
 HDFC Bank Limited  43,233,260 9.09 – –

 29,778,521 6.26 – –
 State Bank of India  – –

(f ) Details of Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) held by each shareholders holding 

more than 5% of total OCCRPS:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

No. of  

Shares held

% of  

Holding 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding 

Indian Overseas Bank  39,888,348  32.84 

State Bank of India  –  – 

Union Bank of India  31,884,492  26.25 

Corporation Bank  21,826,928  17.97  –  – 
HDFC Bank Limited  18,528,540  15.26  –  – 

 9,326,619  7.68  –  – 

(g) Shares reserved for issue under options:

`
Option Scheme-2011.



 

 As at  

 March 31,  

2013 

 As at 
 March 31,  

2012 

3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserves

Opening Balance  –  – 

Add:  145.67  – 

Closing Balance  145.67  – 

Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance  26.53 

Add:  462.82  – 

Closing Balance  489.35 

Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance  13.41  13.41 

Add:  6.04  – 

Less: Utilised for premium on redemption of Preference shares  13.41  – 

Closing Balance  6.04  13.41 

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance  12.50  – 

Add: Addition during the year  – 

Less:  12.50  – 

Closing Balance  – 

Share Options Outstanding Account (Refer note 41)

Opening Balance  58.47  – 

Add: Addition during the year (net)  23.03 

Closing Balance  81.50 

Less:  49.96 

 31.54  10.20 

General Reserve

Opening Balance  175.28 

Add:  12.50  – 

Add:  62.27  – 

Closing Balance  250.05 

Surplus

Opening balance  (172.43)

Add:  622.70 

Less: Premium on redemption of Preference shares (refer note 2 (b) (i) and (iii))  (20.31)  – 

Less:  (462.82)  – 

Less:  (62.27)  – 

Less:  – 

Less: Proposed Dividend on Preference shares  (0.03)  (0.22)

Less:  (0.01)  (0.04)

Less: ` `  (54.79)  – 

Less:  (9.31)  – 

Closing Balance  (159.27)

TOTAL  763.38 
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Notes: 

(a)

to ` 194.22 crore.
As per the original terms, the Preference Share holders had the right to convert OCCRPS Series 2 along with accumulated 

`

(b) During the year, the Company has created capital redemption reserve of `
shares of `

 As at  

 March 31,  

2013 

 As at 
 March 31,  

2012 

4.  LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED

–  

from banks/financial institutions – 

from others  1.88 

 1.88 

UNSECURED

Deferred payment liabilities 

Sales tax deferral loan (Refer note (3) below)  3.10  3.91 
Loans from Others (Refer note (4) below)  4.54 

 7.64 

TOTAL  9.52 

 Notes:

 (1) During the current year:

releasing the securities provided to CDR lenders under the CDR Scheme as stated below is currently under progress.
` `

 (2) During the previous year: 
`

were secured by first charge on pari-passu basis:

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad;
   and by way of second charge on pari passu basis on current assets of the company at all locations.

   (I)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated term loans from banks/
financial institutions amounting to `



 

basis and rupee denominated term loans from banks/financial institutions amounting to `
by third charge on pari passu basis:

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad. 
      Further, loans amounting to `

basis and loans amounting to `
basis on current assets of the Company at all locations.

   (II)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated term loans from banks 
amounting to ` 

the Company at all locations.

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.

and movable assets of the Company at all locations.
   (III)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the rupee denominated loans from others amounting 

to `

by way of hypothecation of current assets of the Company at all locations.

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad.
    (iv) the Company was in the process of creating charge on movable assets of the Company at all locations.

`

  (c)  Loans amounting to `

March 31, 2012.
   All the aforesaid  loans have been repaid fully during the year.

` 1.32 crore (Previous 
Year – ` ` ` 4.24 crore) by October 2021.

 As at  

 March 31, 

 2013 

 As at  
 March 31, 

 2012 
5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (net)

 Deferred tax liabilities 

  Difference between depreciation on block of assets  148.64  120.23 
  Research and development cost –  109.39 
  148.64 

 Deferred tax assets

 5.44 

 7.29 

  Provision for Bonus  0.30  0.24 
 0.98 –

  Provision for Doubtful Debts  14.08 

  28.09 

 TOTAL  120.55 
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 As at  

 March 31, 

 2013 

 As at  
 March 31, 

 2012 

6. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)

   11.69  14.10 
   14.39 

 TOTAL  26.08 

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

 SECURED

 Loans repayable on demand

 Working capital facilities from banks  163.17 

 TOTAL  163.17 

 Notes:

 (a)  Working capital facilities from Banks are secured by way of:
  (i)  First charge on pari passu basis on present and future stock of raw materials, consumables, spares, semi-finished goods, 

finished goods and book debts.
  (ii)  Second charge on pari passu basis by way of mortgage of immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets, 

  (b) During previous year:
   1)  Pursuant to the approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, the working capital facilities were secured by way of 

second charge on pari passu basis:

subsidiary i.e. Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra in Aurangabad;
   and by way of first charge on pari passu basis on current assets of the Company at all locations.

Palanpur Holdings and Investments Private Limited.

March 31, 2012.

 As at  

 March 31, 

 2013 

 As at 
 March 31, 

 2012 

8. TRADE PAYABLES 

 Trade Payables (Refer note 35)

 469.30 

 TOTAL  469.30 

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 4)  1.43 

 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.43  2.11 
 Interest accrued and due on borrowings –   0.02 
 Unpaid dividends  0.83  1.04 
 Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds – Unsecured (Refer note (a) below) –   211.04 
 Other payables
  Security deposits  18.23 

 34.00 

  Provision for Recompense – 

  Creditors for Statutory dues  11.30 

  Creditors for Capital goods  23.16 

  Advance received from Customers  1,051.96 

  Other liabilities  33.31  41.92 
 TOTAL  1,174.65 



 

 Note:

` 12.12 crore) 

 As at  
 March 31, 

 2013 

 As at  
 March 31, 

 2012 
10. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)

 5.06 

 8.08 

 13.14  3.94 
 Other provisions:

 Provision for sales return on date expiry (Refer note (a) below)  10.05 

 Provision for tax, net of advance tax (Refer note (b) below) –

 Proposed dividend on preference shares  0.03  0.22 
 0.01  0.04 

 54.79 –  
 9.31 –  

 74.19 

 TOTAL  87.33 

 Notes:

` `
year ` ` ` 9.91 crore (Previous Year – `
` `

   Provision has been recognised for expected sales return on date expiry of products sold during last two years. It is expected that 
all of this would be incurred within two years of the balance sheet date.

 (b) During previous year, provision for tax is net off advance tax of `

11. FIXED ASSETS (At cost)

 As at  
1.4.2012 

Additions Deduction/ 
Other 

 As at 
31.3.2013 

 As at 
1.4.2012 

For the 
Year*

Deduction/ 
Other 

 As at 
31.3.2013 

 As at 
31.3.2013 

 As at 
31.3.2012 

Tangible Assets

Freehold land –  –   63.06 –  –  –  –    63.06 

Leasehold land –  –   8.34  1.02  0.11 –  1.13  7.21 

Buildings  19.01 –  163.16 –  33.50  129.66 

 999.54  44.29  (0.33)  344.15  655.39 

Furniture and Fixtures –   24.23  1.41 –  12.59  11.64 

 2.11 –  5.89  2.93  0.32 –  3.25  2.64 

 1.12  0.01  7.04  0.30  0.01  5.78  1.26  0.44 
 28.67  22.67  6.00 

TOTAL  1,195.59  122.01  17.67  1,299.93  374.34  55.32  6.59  423.07  876.86  821.25 

Previous Year  329.20  374.34  821.25 

Intangible Assets

–   121.58 –   69.52  52.06 

Computer software –    14.11  1.39 –  6.41  7.70 

TOTAL  85.17  50.52 –   135.69  50.46  25.47 –   75.93  59.76  34.71 

TOTAL  1,280.76  172.53  17.67  1,435.62  424.80  80.79  6.59  499.00  936.62  855.96 

Previous Year  20.00  22.92 
Capital work-in-progress [Refer note (a)] –   –  –  –  –  –  –  –   481.79

TOTAL –   –  –  –  –  –  –  –    481.79  473.66 

Intangible assets under Development 
–   –  –  –  –  –  –  –   –

TOTAL –   –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –   337.14 

TOTAL –   –  –  –  –  –  –  –    481.79 

TOTAL  1,280.76  172.53  17.67  1,435.62  424.80  80.79  6.59  499.00  1,418.41  1,666.76 

 * includes amount ` 0.02 crore (Previous Year – `
Notes:

(a)  Addition to Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets under Development includes expenditure incurred during construction period pending allocation aggregating ` 0.11 crore 
(Previous Year – ` ` 0.11 crore. During previous year these expenses include Material Consumption `

` ` ` ` `
Power ` ` 1.24 crore, Clinical trial expenses ` 23.30 crore, Legal and professional charges ` `

` `
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 As at  

 March 31, 

2013 

As at 
 March 31, 

2012

12. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS – at cost

 A. In Wholly owned subsidiary companies (unquoted) 

par value £1 each fully paid up (including two fully paid-up shares held in the name 
of nominees of the Company) 8.38

75.27

Limited of ` 10 each fully paid-up (including six fully paid-up shares of par value 
held in the name of the nominees of the Company) 9.00 9.00

209.62

` 10 each fully paid-up in 
Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited (including one fully paid-up share of 
par value held in the name of the nominees of the Company) 3.50

Shares of ` 0.64

` 10 each fully paid-up of 

the name of nominees of the Company) 1.09 1.09

307.50

 B. Other than trade (unquoted)

Limited of ` 10 each fully paid-up 0.44 0.44

of ` 10 each fully paid-up 0.01 0.01

 
` 10 each fully paid-up*

  * ` ` 10,000) – –

0.45

  TOTAL 307.95

13. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 Capital Advances 

  Unsecured, considered good  40.87 

 40.87 

 Security Deposits

   Unsecured, considered good (includes deposits with Related parties ` 
(Previous Year – `  62.04 

 62.04 

 Loans and advances to related parties (Refer note 30 and note 43)

  Loans to Subsidiaries – Unsecured, considered good  103.23 

 103.23 

 Advance tax, net of provision for tax (Refer note below)  61.25 –  

 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement  37.36 

 Other advances  38.17 

 TOTAL  342.92 

 Note:

  Advance tax after netting off provision for tax in current year `



 

 As at  

 March 31,  

2013 

As at 
 March 31, 

 2012 

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 Margin money*  4.92 –  

  4.92 –   

 ` 4.92 crore (Previous Year – `

 As at  

 March 31,  

2013 

As at 
 March 31, 

 2012 

15. INVENTORIES

 Raw Materials and components 188.19

  11.76 

 199.95 

 Work-in-progress 106.89

 Finished goods 160.31

 Stock-in-trade 39.69

 Stores and spares 20.75

 TOTAL  527.59 

 Note:

  Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

 As at  

 March 31,  

2013 

As at 
 March 31, 

 2012 

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 

 Unsecured, considered good  167.41 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  1.61 –  

 169.02 

 Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (1.61) –   

 167.41 

 

 Unsecured, considered good  39.22 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  41.81 

 81.03 

 Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (41.81)

 39.22 

 TOTAL  206.63 
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 As at 

 March 31, 

 2013 

As at 
March 31, 

 2012 

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Balances with banks

  On current account  91.35 

  Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months  50.43 –  

  Unpaid dividend accounts  0.83  1.04 

 Cash on hand  0.10  0.11 

 142.71 

 Other bank balances

 Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months  0.22  0.22 

 Margin money*  41.00 

 41.22  3.09 

 TOTAL  183.93 

 * ` 41.00 crore (Previous Year – `

 As at 

 March 31, 

 2013 

As at 
March 31, 

 2012 

18. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 Loans and advances to related parties (Refer note (a) and (b) below)

 Unsecured, considered good  16.43 

 16.43 

 Other short-term loans and advances

 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

 Unsecured, considered good  45.57 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  14.30 

 Less: Provision for doubtful advances  (14.30)

 45.57 

 Advances to suppliers  34.08 

 Balances with statutory/government authorities  65.97 

 Other short-term advances (Refer note 9(a))  12.92  1.00 

 158.54 

 TOTAL  174.97 

 Notes:

 (a)  Loans and advances to related parties include ` `
note 43).

`

was not in line with remuneration proposed and approved by the shareholders, the Company had once again made an application 

` `
as recoverable.

 
` ` 2.40 crore  

and `  
the Company has shown the excess payment, during current year, over the permissible limits specified in Schedule XIII of the 
Companies Act amounting `



For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 
 March 31, 

2012

19. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Revenue from operations (Refer note 31)

 Sale of products  2,196.81  2,136.96 

 Less: Excise duty  (5.77)  (3.84)

 2,191.04  2,133.12 

 Sale of services  12.37  23.98 

 Outlicensing fees  167.77  140.00 

 Assignment of New Chemical Entity  100.00 – 

 TOTAL  2,471.18 

20. OTHER INCOME

 Interest Income  34.25  11.42 

 Dividend Income*
 * ` 9,450 (Previous Year – ` 6,300)

– –

 Miscellaneous income (Refer note below)  11.25  8.55 

 TOTAL  45.50 

 Note:

  Miscellaneous income includes liabilities no more payable of ` ` 3.05 crore).

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 
 March 31, 

2012

21.  CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-

TRADE (Refer note 34)

 Opening Inventories

  Finished goods  99.91  60.69 

  Work-in-progress  86.17  44.03 

  Stock-in-trade  36.70  33.58 

  Less: Excise duty on opening stock  (0.92)  (0.83)

 221.86 

 Closing Inventories

  Finished goods  (160.31)  (99.91)

  Work-in-progress  (106.89)

  Stock-in-trade  (39.69)

  Less: Excise duty on closing stock  2.08  0.92 

 (304.81)  (221.86)

 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (82.95)  (84.39)

 Note:

  Inventory of Finished goods pertaining to Discontinued operations and excluded  
from above:

 Opening Inventories (Gross of excise) 25.37 19.51

 Closing Inventories (Gross of excise) –

 Opening Inventories (Net of excise) 25.20 19.49

 Closing Inventories (Net of excise) – (25.20)
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For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 
 March 31, 

2012

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 Salaries and wages (Refer note 40)  206.84  152.93 

 Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 40)  12.62 

 Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) – (Refer note 41)  25.82  10.20 

 Staff welfare expenses  55.79  45.69 

 TOTAL  301.07  218.29 

23. FINANCE COSTS

 Interest expense

  on term loans  71.76  112.86 

  on debentures  17.43  26.24 

  others (Refer note below)  34.74 

 123.93  214.12 

 Other borrowing costs  30.44  1.24 

 TOTAL  154.37  215.36 

 Note:

  Interest expenses for the year ended March 31, 2012 includes premium on Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds ` 12.46 
crore pertaining to earlier years.

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 
 March 31, 

2012

24. OTHER EXPENSES

 Travelling and conveyance  56.38  48.14 

 Freight and forwarding charges  53.95  40.32 

 Sales promotion and other selling cost  33.66  42.06 

 Commission on sales  21.29 

 Power and fuel  78.68  66.16 

 Rent (Refer note 44)  55.63  9.11 

 Rates and taxes  3.03 

 Repairs and maintenance 

 – to Building  2.99  4.24 

 – to Plant and machinery  14.85  11.84 

 – to Others  8.60 

 Stores and spare parts consumed  28.32  19.49 

 Insurance  5.35  4.32 

 Provision for doubtful debts  1.57 

 (Reversal of provisions) / provision for doubtful advances  (15.06)  29.36 

 Product development expenses written off  1.49 

  16.16 

  Directors' sitting fees  0.11  0.13 

  Material for test batches  30.73 –

 Miscellaneous expenses  163.24  95.94 

 TOTAL  560.97  481.23



For the year  

ended March 31, 2013

For the year  
ended March 31, 2012

 Value  %  Value  % 
25.  BREAK-UP OF RAW MATERIAL, PACKING MATERIAL 

AND STORES AND SPARE PARTS CONSUMED

 (i) Materials

  Imported  247.12 27.43  198.05 24.06
  Indigenously Procured 
   (Includes ` 41.55 crore (Previous Year – ` 152.90 

crore) pertaining to Discontinued operations)  653.73 72.57  625.14 
 900.85 100.00  823.19 100.00

 (ii) Stores and Spare Parts

  Imported  3.28 11.58  19.02 
  Indigenously Procured 
   (Includes ` 0.01 crore (Previous Year – 

` 0.01 crore) pertaining to Discontinued 
operations)  25.05 88.42 80.98

 28.33 100.00  19.50 100.00

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 
2012

26. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION (INCLUDING SERVICE TAX)

 Audit Fees* 0.40

 Tax Audit Fees 0.19  0.18 
 Other services* 0.43  0.65 
 Out of pocket expenses 0.01  0.01 

1.03  1.31 

 *  Audit remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2012 includes ` 0.08 crore towards audit fees and ` 0.12 crore towards other services 
pertaining to prior year.

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 
2012

27. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.I.F. BASIS

 Raw Materials and Packing Materials 253.82  231.49 
 Components and spares 4.49

 Capital Goods 26.02  36.64 
284.33 289.92

28. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)

 Travelling  0.63  0.34 
 Professional fees  15.03  26.21 
 Royalty  1.59  3.96 
 Interest  3.77  22.29 
 Others  57.01  61.32 

78.03 114.12

29. EARNING IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE (ACCRUAL BASIS)

 Exports of goods on F.O.B. basis  1,174.04  1,209.44 
 Management and Technical fees  5.78  12.81 
 Outlicensing fees  167.77  140.00 
 Royalty  3.11 

 Interest  3.48  3.14 
 Research and Development Services  4.06  10.19 
 Assignment of New Chemical Entity  100.00 –
 Others –  2.60 

 1,458.24 
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30. INFORMATION PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF LISTING AGREEMENTS WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:

` 52.68 crore (Previous Year – ` 52.63 crore) [maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 56.19 crore (Previous Year – `  
Wockhardt Bio AG ` 0.21 crore (Previous Year – ` ` 30.63 crore (Previous Year – `
Wockhardt Holding Corp. ` 62.42  crore (Previous Year – ` 58.45 crore) [maximum outstanding during the year ` 64.49 crore (Previous Year –  
`

 

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 
2012

31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS CONSISTS OF:

 Sale of products
  Injections  293.96  269.58 
   174.60 

  Tablets and Capsules  1,425.28  1,419.38 

  Ointments  42.59  34.16 

  Powder  4.05 

  Bulk Drugs  175.36  188.01 
  Other goods  67.25  18.90 
  Export Incentive  13.72  23.68 

 2,196.81  2,136.96 
 Sale of services
  Research and Management services  6.01  10.66 
  Distribution Income  0.59  0.51 
  Management Fees  5.77  12.81 

 12.37  23.98 
 Outlicensing fees  167.77  140.00 
 Assignment of New Chemical Entity  100.00 –
 TOTAL  2,476.95  2,300.94 

32. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED CONSISTS OF:

 Cyclohexenylethylamine  18.03 

  18.39  14.08 
 Ropinirole Hcl  3.90  5.52 
 P-Methoxy Phenyl Acetic Acid  16.01  12.42 
  6.83  8.35 
 Povidone Iodine  8.00  5.09 
 Paracetamol  19.14 

 D-Mandelic Acid  5.82  4.64 
 Gliciazide BP  1.18 

 Dexamethasone  8.34  6.34 
 Azithromycin  3.36  3.98 
 Product B  7.54  8.62 
 Isoproplyl alcohol  4.89  4.83 
 Metoprolol Succinate  12.59 

 Prosolv Smcc  7.86  6.13 
 Valproic Acid  14.24 

 Venlafaxine Hcl  8.22  8.41 
 Valacyclovir Hcl  8.24 

 Others  686.72 

 TOTAL  859.30 



For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 
2012

33. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE CONSISTS OF:

 Injections  74.71 

  46.13  55.61 
 Tablets and Capsules  124.58  95.58 
 Ointments  5.40  2.94 
 Powder  1.18  0.99 
 Other goods  9.43  3.96 
 TOTAL  261.43  236.53 

34.  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-

IN-TRADE CONSISTS OF:

 Opening inventories:

 Finished goods

  Injections  6.47 

   3.97 

  Tablets and Capsules  29.10  21.16 

  Ointments  1.18  1.30 

  Bulk Drugs  59.19 

 Work-in-progress  86.17  44.03 
 Stock-in-trade
     Injections  11.72 

 8.69 

     Tablets and Capsules  14.36  14.91 
     Ointments   0.57  0.54 
     Powder  0.16  0.41 
     Bulk Drugs  0.03  0.03 
     Other goods  1.17  1.43 
 Less: Excise Duty on opening stock  (0.92)  (0.83)

 221.86 

 Closing inventories:

 Finished goods
  Injections  (19.57)

   (4.65)

  Tablets and Capsules  (44.60)  (29.10)
  Ointments  (2.94)  (1.18)
  Powder  (0.03) –
  Bulk Drugs  (88.28)  (59.19)
  Other goods  (0.24) –

 Work-in-progress  (106.89)

 Stock-in-trade
     Injections  (8.09)

 (8.44)  (8.69)
     Tablets and Capsules  (18.20)  (14.36)
     Ointments   (1.29)

     Powder  (0.21)  (0.16)
     Bulk Drugs  (0.06)  (0.03)
     Other goods  (3.40)

 Less: Excise Duty on closing stock 2.08  0.92 
 (304.81)  (221.86)

 TOTAL  (82.95)  (84.39)
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As at  

March 31,  

2013 

As at  
March 31,  

2012 

35.  DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED 

ACT, 2006:

 (a)  Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006  13.46  6.53 
 (b)  Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount, and 

unpaid  0.24  0.13 
 (c)  Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day during 

the year  80.52 

 (d) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) – –
 (e)  Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act for payments already 

made – –
 (f )  Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 

MSMED Act (including interest mentioned in (e) above)  0.24  0.13 
  The above information is given to the extent available with the Company and relied upon 

by the auditor.

For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

36. EARNINGS PER SHARE

  The calculations of Earnings per share (EPS) (basic and diluted) are based on the earnings 
and number of shares as computed below:

 Reconciliation of earnings

 Profit after tax 622.70 184.00 
 Less: Dividend (including tax on dividend) payable on preference shares  (0.04)  (0.09)
 Net profit for calculation of basic/diluted EPS 622.66 183.91 

 Reconciliation of number of shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
 Weighted average number of shares in calculating Basic EPS 109,475,239 109,435,903
 Add: Weighted average number of shares under ESOS 1,737,512

111,212,751 109,980,633 

 Earnings per share (face value ` 5/- each)

 Earnings per share – Basic in  `  56.88  16.81 

 Earnings per share – Diluted in  `  55.99 

Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (OCCRPS) are not considered for calculating diluted earnings per share since 

as per SEBI formula prevailing on the date on which the holders of OCCRPS are entitled to convert.

37. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

 (i)  Hitherto, the Company had recognised product development cost as an intangible asset as and when incurred. The management 
has reassessed the recognition criteria for capitalization of development cost based on its most recent experience of regulatory 
approvals, clinical trials, economic uncertainties, industry experience and business plans. This review indicates that the recognition 
criteria may not be met till the time regulatory approvals are received. Hence, the Company has revised its recognition criteria for 
developments costs and auditors have relied on the management judgment being technical in nature. Accordingly, the Company:

  (a)  has expensed off the carried forward cost of products under development as at June 30, 2012, amounting to ` 319.05 crore, 

March 2013 amounting to ` 121.05 crore under respective expense heads.

 (ii)  Exceptional items for the year ended March 31, 2013 also includes profit on sale of Nutrition business `

 (iii)  Exceptional items of previous year mainly comprises of settlement of loan/disputed derivative liabilities ` 55.30 crore and provision 
for recompense ` 105.56 crore for period April 15, 2009 to March 31, 2011. 

   Recompense provision made in previous year has been reclassified as interest ` 54.44 crore being interest pertaining to Financial 
Year 2011-12 and balance provision of ` 105.56 crore has been considered as exceptional item being pertaining to period earlier to 
Financial Year 2011-12.



 38. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

only on the basis of Consolidated Financial Statement. (Refer note 31 of Consolidated Financial Statements).
For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

39(a).  Capital expenditure on Research and Development* 18.50  129.15 

39(b).

is as under:
For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012

Chemicals and consumables  34.33  6.38 
Employee cost  57.66 

Travelling expenses  4.97 

Power and fuel  7.75 

Repair and maintenance  3.91 

Printing and stationery  0.78  0.58 
Communication expenses  0.65  0.68 
Clinical trial expenses  4.05  5.45 
Analysis expenses  4.03  0.24 

 15.33  0.88 
Other Research and Development expenses  67.51  5.08 
TOTAL  200.97 

 For the  

year ended 

March 31,  

2013 

Gratuity 

 (Non-funded) 

 For the  
year ended 

March 31,  
2012 

Gratuity  
(Non-funded) 

40. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(A) Defined benefit plans:

 I. Expenses recognised during the year

  1. Current Service Cost  2.78  2.32 
  2. Interest cost 1.36  1.16 

 (0.77)  (0.24) 
  Total Expenses 3.37  3.24 
 II. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised as at balance sheet date

  1. Present value of defined benefit obligation 16.75

16.75

 III.  Reconciliation of Net Asset/(Liability) recognised as at  

balance sheet date

 (15.57)  (14.04)
  2. Expense as per (I) above 3.37 3.24
  3. Net transfer out due to discontinuance of Nutrition business (0.94) –
  4. Employer contributions  (1.25)

 (16.75)

 IV. Actuarial Assumptions

  1. Discount rate 7.75%

  2. Expected rate of salary increase 8.00%

  3. Mortality Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality  

(2006-08) 

Ultimate

LIC (1994-96)   

Ultimate

  Notes:

    Gratuity ` ` ` 9.80 crore (Previous Year – `
  (b)  The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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April 2012- 

March 2013

April 2011- 
March 2012

April 2010- 
March 2011

January 2009- 
March 2010

January 2008- 
December 2008

(B)  Details of gratuity for the current and 

previous four years are as follows:

 Defined benefit obligation  16.75  14.04  11.00  11.28 
 Surplus/(deficit)  (16.75)  (14.04)  (11.00)  (11.28)
  Experience adjustment on plan 

liabilities (gain)/loss  (0.30)  0.54  (0.69)  0.01 

(C) Defined contribution plan:

` 12.86 crore (Previous Year – ` 10.13 crore).

41. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME [ESOS]

` 5/- each as per the following:

Directors).
  As per the Scheme, the Compensation committee has granted 60,000 options @ `

@ ` 365/- per option (Grant 2), 1,420,000 options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 3), 350,000 options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 4) and 8,500 
options @ ` 5/- per option (Grant 5) in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option 
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, to the selected employees (including Independent Directors) of the 

Directors) who have accepted the options.
 The Scheme provides that these options would vest in tranches over a period as follows:

Period within which options will vest unto the participant Quantity

1 year from the date of grant of Options 185,000
1 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 202,500
2 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 442,250
2 year 9 months from the date of grant of Options
3 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options 640,500
4 year 3 months from the date of grant of Options
4 year 5 months from the date of grant of Options
5 year 9 months from the date of grant of Options

1,898,500

 
The scheme shall be administered by the compensation committee of Board of directors.
Employee stock option activity under Scheme 2011 is as follows:

 For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013 

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

(a) Outstanding at beginning of the year  1,540,000 –
(b) Granted during the year  358,500  1,540,000 

 158,000 –
(d) Exercised during the year  147,500 –
(e) Outstanding at the end of the year:  1,593,000  1,540,000 
 of which Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year  29,000 –

 No option have been forfeited during the year or in the previous year.

Weighted average fair value of options on the date of grant:
 For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013 

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

Grant 1 –

Grant 2 – 142.60
Grant 3 – 410.14
Grant 4 894.56 –
Grant 5 1,949.76 –



and reporting principles for share based payment plans for employees. The Guidance Note applies to employee share based payments, 
the grant date in respect of which falls on or after April 1, 2005. The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account compensation 
expense arising from issuance of stock options to the employees. Had compensation cost been determined under the fair value approach 

share (as restated) would have been increased/decreased to the proforma amounts as set out below:

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

622.70 184.00 

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense (intrinsic value method), net of tax 19.48 9.84 

Less: Stock-based employee compensation expense (fair value method), net of tax (20.23) (9.49)

Proforma net profit 621.95 184.35 

Basic earnings per share as reported (`) 56.88 16.81 

Proforma basic earnings per share (`)  56.81  16.84 

Diluted earnings per share as reported (`) 55.99 

Proforma diluted earnings per share (`) 55.92 

The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options are:

(a) Grant 1, Grant 2 and Grant 3

 Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 414.00 414.00

 Expected life

  First vesting  1.50  1.50 

  Second vesting  1.88  1.88 

  Third vesting  2.88  2.88 

  Fourth vesting  3.88  3.88 

  Fifth vesting  4.88  4.88 

 Risk free interest rate 8%

 Volatility 36%

 Weighted average exercise price (` Per share) 37.65 34.30

(b) Grant 4

 Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 897.75 –

 Expected life

  First vesting  3.25 –

  Second vesting  4.75 –

  Third vesting  6.25 –

  Fourth vesting  7.75 –

 Risk free interest rate 8.35% –

 Volatility 51% –

(c) Grant 5

 Stock price at the time of option grant (` Per share) 1,954.20 –

 Expected life

  First vesting  1.50 –

 Risk free interest rate 7.86% –

 Volatility 38% –

  Weighted average exercise price for Grant 4 and Grant 5 is ` 5/-

   Dividend yield has not been separately built in, as the stock prices for one year has been considered which factors for the price 
movement on account of the dividend.
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42. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

  Pursuant to Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated August 2, 2011, the divestment of Nutrition business on a slump sale basis to 
Danone was completed on July 26, 2012. The Company has received the entire consideration of ` 648.31 crore (including purchase price 
adjustment) on the aforesaid divestment. The profit on account of the aforesaid transaction amounting to `

 Details of profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2013

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2012

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2013*

 For the year 
ended March 

31, 2012 

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2013

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2012
Revenue from Operations  2,471.18  111.25  263.30  2,582.43  2,560.40 
Other Income  45.50  0.09  0.15  45.59  20.12 
Total Revenue  2,516.68  111.34  263.45  2,628.02  2,580.52 

Total expenses other  
than Finance costs  1,960.75  1,615.31  87.78  204.64  2,048.53  1,819.95 
Finance costs  154.37  215.36  (0.04)  (0.15)  154.33  215.21 
Total expenses  2,115.12  87.74  204.49  2,202.86  2,035.16 

Profit before exceptional items 
and tax  401.56  486.40  23.60  58.96  425.16  545.36 

 
 (288.18)  161.65 – –  (288.18)  161.65 

Profit before tax  689.74  23.60  58.96  713.34 

Tax expense  82.98  186.32  7.66  13.39  90.64 

Profit after tax  606.76  138.43  15.94  622.70  184.00 

  * Turnover, Expenses and Profit before tax upto July 25, 2012

  The carrying amount of assets and liabilities pertaining to the discontinued business are as follows:

  As at  

July 25,  

2012

As at  
March 31,  

2012
  Total Assets 60.23  53.60 

19.15

43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 (a) Parties where control exists

   Wholly owned subsidiary companies (including step down subsidiaries)

3 CP Pharma (Schweiz) AG

11 Z&Z Services GmbH (formerly, esparma GmbH)

Wockhardt USA Inc.,)
15  Wockhardt Bio AG (formerly Wockhardt EU 

Operations (Swiss) AG)

S.A.S.)
22 Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S.
23 Esparma AG.
24 Wockhardt Holding Corp.
25 Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
26 MGP Inc.

October 6, 2011)

2000 S.A.S.)

31 Niverpharma S.A.S.
32 Negma Beneulex S.A.

34 Phytex S.A.S.
35 Scomedia S.A.S. (sold on May 16, 2011).

 
November 28, 2012).

 
November 9, 2012)

38  Wockhardt Services SA DE CV. (w.e.f. June 21, 2012)



  Holding Company

  Associate Company

  Swiss Biosciences AG

 (b) Other related party relationships where transactions have taken place during the year

  Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence

  Wockhardt Foundation

  Fellow Subsidiary

  Key managerial personnel

  Dr. H. F. Khorakiwala, Chairman
  Dr. Huzaifa Khorakiwala, Executive Director
  Dr. Murtaza Khorakiwala, Managing Director

For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

 (c) Transactions with related parties during the year

  Subsidiary Companies

   Purchase of Raw material [Wockhardt Bio AG `  0.24 crore (Previous Year – `  Nil), 
` `  2.28 crore), Morton 

Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ` Nil (Previous Year – `  1.00  2.29 

–  0.81 

 0.54 –

`  0.20 crore (Previous 
Year - ` ` `  4.93 crore), 
Wockhardt Bio AG ` 2.85 crore (Previous Year – `

` 0.80 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.55 crore), Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV. 
`  0.05 crore (Previous Year - `  Nil), Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. `  1.31 crore 
(Previous Year – `  5.78  12.81 

` 2.33 crore (Previous Year – `
crore), Wockhardt Bio AG ` 1.59 crore (Previous Year – `  3.92  5.69 

`  6.32 crore (Previous Year – `
` 1.31 crore (Previous Year – `

` ` `
crore (Previous Year – ` `  3.40 crore (Previous 
Year – `  974.40  999.16 

   Interest Income [Wockhardt Holding Corp. ` ` 2.35 crore), 
Wockhardt Bio AG ` `

` 3.26 crore (Previous Year – `  6.74  6.46 

 13.32  12.18 

  Out licensing fees to Wockhardt Bio AG  167.77  140.00 

  Assignment of New Chemical Entity to Wockhardt Bio AG  100.00 –

 0.76 –

 0.09  0.09 

 0.01  0.01 

 0.13 –

 0.05 –

   Capital expenditure recovered [Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. `  0.93 crore 
(Previous Year – ` ` Nil (Previous Year – ` 1.10 crore), 
Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV. ` 0.25 crore (Previous Year – `  1.18 
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For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

Expenses recovered [Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ` 
` ` 0.01 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil), Wockhardt 

` 0.01 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.64 crore), Wockhardt Bio AG ` 0.08 crore (Previous 
Year – ` 0.03 crore), Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV. ` 0.68 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil),  

`  0.04 crore (Previous Year – `  0.05 crore), Wockhardt UK 
` 0.05 crore (Previous Year – `  1.61  0.84 

Reimbursement of expenses [Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. `
Year – `  0.01 crore), Wockhardt Bio AG ` `  0.53 crore), 

` 1.61 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.85 crore), Wockhardt UK 
` 1.00 crore (Previous Year – ` ` Nil (Previous 

Year – `  3.52  2.95 

 13.43  9.44 

`
(Previous Year – ` 10.39 crore), Wockhardt Bio AG ` `  43.11  10.39 

Advances received against Export of Goods and Services from Wockhardt Bio AG  2,002.60 –

Advances adjusted against export of Goods and Services pertaining to Wockhardt Bio AG  980.62 –

Fellow Subsidiary

 7.64 

Rent paid  51.13  5.34 

Key managerial personnel

Remuneration paid  1.77 

[Remuneration to Chairman ` `  1.85 crore), Remuneration 
paid to Managing Director ` 0.60 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.95 crore), Remuneration paid 
to Executive Director ` 0.60 crore (Previous Year – ` 

Irrevocable personal guarantee given by Chairman –  1,128.50 
Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence

` 0.08 crore (Previous 
Year – ` ` 0.01 crore (Previous Year – `  0.09 

Donation given to Wockhardt Foundation  0.64 –
 1.76  2.06 

–  1,128.50 

(d) Related party balances

Receivable from wholly owned subsidiary companies [Z&Z Services GmbH `
(Previous Year – ` ` 0.56 crore (Previous Year – ` 10.10 

` 0.66 crore (Previous Year – ` 0.40 crore), Wockhardt 
Bio AG `  Nil (Previous Year – `  65.10 crore), Wockhardt Infrastructure Development 

`  52.68 crore (Previous Year – `
` 11.06 crore (Previous Year – ` 1.65 crore), Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ` 
crore (Previous Year – ` 3.96 crore), Wockhardt Holding Corp. ` 63.58 crore (Previous 
Year – ` `  2.52 crore (Previous Year – `  4.64 
crore), Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV ` 1.01 crore (Previous Year – `  139.15  198.08 

` 10.42 
crore (Previous Year – ` ` 13.69 crore (Previous 
Year – ` ` 1,019.99 crore (Previous Year – `  Nil), 

` 4.01 crore (Previous Year – `  3.00 crore), Wockhardt France 
(Holdings) S.A.S ` 1.25 crore (Previous Year – `  (1,049.36)  (25.26)

 0.47 

Payable to fellow subsidiary  (39.10)  (3.85)

Security deposit given to fellow subsidiary  46.50  46.50 

 (1.85)

 2.75 

Receivable from Key managerial personnel [Chairman `  3.39 crore (Previous Year – 
` 1.28 crore), Managing Director ` 0.48 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil), Executive Director 
` 0.48 crore (Previous Year – `  4.35  1.28 



44.  The Company has taken office premises on operating lease. These leave and license agreements are generally for a period not exceeding 
five years and are in most cases renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. There are no restrictions imposed by lease 
arrangements. There are no subleases.

 For the  

year ended  

March 31,  

2013 

 For the  
year ended  

March 31,  
2012 

Annual commitments for lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases  
are as follows:

46.91  5.12 

More than 1 year but less than five years 51.53  1.44 

More than five years 0.04  0.08 

45. DISCLOSURE REGARDING UNHEDGED CURRENCY EXPOSURE

 (a) The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

 As at March 31, 2013  As at March 31, 2012 

Particulars Currency Amount in  

Foreign Currency  

(in million) ` in crore

Amount in  
Foreign Currency  

(in million) ` in crore

Trade Receivables ACU  0.17  0.76  0.20  0.88 

AUD  0.01  0.08  0.01 

CHF  1.67  9.53  6.59 

EUR  2.84  19.75  2.51 

GBP  0.26  2.12  1.29  10.49 

USD  38.04  206.48  34.36 

EUR  5.53  38.42  2.15  14.58 

USD  17.14  93.03  19.34  98.30 

CHF  0.04  0.24  0.05  0.26 

GBP  0.17  1.42  0.05  0.38 

JPY  12.23  0.70  6.43  0.40 

Trade payables and Other  
ACU – –  0.001  0.01 

SGD – –  0.001  0.005 

CAD – –  0.003  0.01 

CHF  2.68  15.30  2.46  13.91 

EUR  5.50  38.16  34.40 

GBP  19.53  160.54  1.92  15.68 

JPY  3.07  0.18  35.11  2.18 

USD  209.59  1,137.55  15.86  80.64 

Foreign Currency Convertible 
Bonds USD – –  41.52  211.04 

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

 (a)  Demands by Central Excise authorities in respect of Classification/Valuation/Cenvat Credit related disputes; stay orders have been 
obtained by the Company in case of demands which have been confirmed ` 9.62 crore (Previous Year – ` 5.18 crore). Further, 
demand from State excise authorities for excise duty on certain inputs disputed by the Company ` 12.55 crore (Previous  Year – ` Nil).

 (b)  Demand by Income tax authorities ` ` 41.63 crore) disputed by the Company.
 (c)   Corporate Guarantee given on behalf of various subsidiaries in respect of credit facilities amounts to ` 1,068.54 crore (Previous  

Year – `

(Previous Year – USD 250 million) amounting to ` 1,068.54 crore (Previous Year – `

acceded to the reschedulement. 
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  This loan availed by the subsidiary is secured by:

Himachal Pradesh.
  (ii)  second ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the current assets, movables, inventories and book debts of 

   Further, out of loan of ` 1,068.54 crore (Previous Year – ` ` 431.69 crore (Previous Year – ` 513.38 crore), 
in addition to aforesaid security, is also secured by :

Chikhalthana and Biotech Park, Waluj  in Aurangabad (except book debts and current assets).

Aurangabad.
   Also, the Company has made an application to Reserve Bank of India for obtaining its approval to create a subservient charge on 

fixed assets of the Company situated at all locations except Baddi in Himachal Pradesh and Kadaiya in Daman.

 (d)   Comfort to extend financial support, subject to certain approvals, to one of its subsidiaries towards credit facilities availed by the 
subsidiary, the impact of which is currently not ascertainable.

 (e)  Claims against Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of local body tax ` 10.28 crore (Previous Year – ` Nil).

time to time in the ordinary course of business. The group believes that there are no such pending matters that are expected to 
have any material adverse effect on its financial statements in any given accounting period.

` 12.12 crore) in the UK 
Court towards the disputed portion of the claim by the FCCB holders that primarily pertains to the Withholding Tax deducted by 
the Company on the default interest paid to the FCCB holders u/s 196 C of Income Tax Act, 1961.

 (h)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for ` 116.82 crore (Previous Year –  
` 55.91 crore) after deducting advance on capital account of ` `

47.  Premium on redemption of preference shares will be provided for before redemption of the preference shares.

48.

Place : Mumbai V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta

R. A. Shah

Directors}



 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(` in crore)

YEAR-END FINANCIAL POSITION 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net Fixed Assets (incl. CWIP)  2,523  3,506  3,468  3,237  3,630  3,071  1,707  788  660  536 
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)  24  (101)  73  47  41  (61)  (60)  (45)
Investments  3  71 –  –   –   –   
TOTAL  2,550  3,631  3,764  3,050  1,615  727  600 
Current Assets  2,656  2,073  2,172  2,011  2,002  1,361  1,254  577 
Current Liabilities  1,265  862  1,475  887  581  365  346  275 
Net Current Assets  2,225  1,467  1,161  1,310  1,124  1,421  302 
Sub-Total  4,775  5,253  4,174  3,036  1,723  1,508 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  (2)  24  183  158  144  26  (7)  (8)  (12)  (14)
Profit & Loss Account – –   –   6 –  –  –   –   –   –   
TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED  4,773  4,987  4,975  4,853  5,397  4,200  3,029  1,715  1,496  779 

Capital

– Equity  55  55  55  55  55  55  55  55  55  36 
– Preference  761  745  668 –   –   –  –  –  –   
TOTAL  353  816  800  723  55  55  55  55  55  36 
Reserves  326  112  1,107  1,245  1,004  753  550  412 
Net Worth  2,702  1,126  835  1,162  1,300  808  605  448 
Borrowings

– Secured  2,054  3,271  3,552  3,161  2,344  1,475  412  408  325 
– Unsecured  17  221  470  466  1,074  556  483  6 
TOTAL  2,071  4,018  4,235  331 
TOTAL SOURCES  4,773  4,987  4,975  4,853  5,397  4,200  3,029  1,715  1,496  779 

Summary of Operations (including 

discontinued operations)

Sales (Excluding Excise)  5,721  4,614  3,751  4,501  1,413  1,252 
Other Income  51  23  16  30  35  208  18  15  8 
TOTAL INCOME  5,772  4,637  3,767  4,531  3,625  2,699  1,748  1,431  1,267  950 

Material Consumed  1,814  1,682  1,516  1,360  668  577  522  413 
Personnel Cost  663  550  735  632  458  210  134 
Other expenses  1,128  776  812  563  270  216 
EBIDTA  2,167  1,463  853  821  685  347  286  187 
Interest Expense/(Income)  243  130  378  132  3  10  (2) –   
Depreciation  125  122  117  113  61  42  37  27 
Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Items  1,051  678  330  474  355  251  160 
Exceptional Items – loss/(gain)  (62)  474  574  581 –   61 –  –   –   
PBT  1,861  577  104  (251)  474  251  160 
Tax (Expense)/Credit  (266)  (235)  (8)  (16)  (53)  (38)  (38)  (17)
PAT  1,595  342  96  (1,002)  (159)  383  241  257  213  143 

Share in Profit of Associate Companies  (1)  1  (5)  2  21  3 –  –   –   –   

IMPORTANT RATIOS

Current Assets : Liabilities  2.76  2.23  2.27  2.50  2.01  2.27  3.45  3.73  3.62  2.10 
Debt : Equity  0.77  2.34  3.42  4.81  3.65  2.23  1.86  1.12  1.47  0.74 
PBT/Turnover % 32.5% 12.5% 2.8% (7.0%) 17.0% 20.8% 20.0% 17.0%
Return (PBIT) on Capital Employed % 44.1% 17.5% (12.6%) 2.4% 14.5% 17.6% 16.5% 20.2%

No. of Equity Shares (in crore)  3.63 
Dividend (per share)  5.00 –   –  –  –   11.25  5.00  5.00  5.00  7.50 
Basic Earnings (per share)  145.6  31.3  8.3  (12.7)  35.3  22.0  23.5 
Net Worth (per share)  246.6  136.6  76.3  106.1  118.8  73.8  55.3  123.5 

Notes: (1) In the year 2004 each equity share of ` 10/- each was sub-divided into 2 equity shares of ` 5/- each and bonus shares in the 
ratio of 1 share for every two shares held were issued.
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FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2013

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Subsidiary Currency Closing 

Exchange 

rate against 

Indian ` as 

on March 31, 

2013

` In Crore

Paid Up 

Capital 

Reserves Total Assets 

including 

investments

Total 

Liabilities 

Turnover Profit/ 

(Loss) 

before 

taxation

Provision 

for 

taxation

Profit / 

(Loss) 

after 

taxation

Proposed 

dividend

1. ` –   18.00  (5.15)  13.04  2.33  2.13  (0.60)  2.73 –  

2. Vinton Healthcare Limited ` –   1.51  22.47  1.13 –   1.56  0.52  1.04 –   

3. ` –   2.00  0.83  58.70  55.87  13.56  1.67  0.11  1.56 –   

4. Z&Z Services GmbH @ Euro ( )  0.17  (1.06)  0.80  0.07  (0.06) –    (0.06) –   

5. STG (£)  82.18  10.74  (2.31)  8.44  0.01 –   (0.03) –    (0.03) –   

6. USD  54.28  0.43  (0.08)  0.36  0.01 –   0.31 –    0.31 –   

7. STG (£)  82.18  2.26  124.12  148.36 –  – –   – –   

8. CP Pharmaceuticals Limited @ STG (£)  82.18  103.71  227.07  103.37  243.10  0.64 –   

CP Pharmaceuticals (Schweiz) AG @ CHF  1.42  (0.30)  0.86  1.37  0.01  0.01 – –   

10. Wallis Group Limited @ STG (£)  82.18  11.58  13.52  25.11  0.01 –  (0.04) –    (0.04) –   

11. The Wallis Laboratory Limited @ STG (£)  82.18  0.03  (0.03) –   –  –   –  –   

12. USD  54.28  1.82  (1.85)  0.02  0.05 –   (0.06) –    (0.06) –   

13. Wallis Licensing Limited @ STG (£)  82.18 –  (7.67)  25.40  33.07 –  –  –   –  –   

14. USD  54.28  10.86  (25.34)  1,653.27  2,803.62  51.03 –    51.03 –   

15. USD  54.28  263.46  3,027.84  4,786.11  3,872.78  1,714.28  1,617.83 –   

16. STG (£)  82.18  0.41  55.33  383.01  327.27  10.32  2.55  7.77 –   

17. USD  54.28  0.01 –  0.28 –   (0.04) –    (0.04) –   

18. Euro ( )  34.75  768.15 –  –   –   

Nonash Limited @ Euro ( )  0.32 –  –   (0.17)  (1.05)  0.50 

20. Pinewood Laboratories Limited @ Euro ( )  330.25  184.07  466.61  60.36  4.38  47.74 

21. Esparma AG @ CHF  0.57  (0.30)  0.28  0.01 –   (0.04)  0.01  (0.05) –   

22. USD  54.28  0.01  140.87  225.08  84.20 –   (0.01) –    (0.01) –   

23. Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc. @ USD  54.28 185.40  173.73  474.23  115.10  354.00  32.16  31.80  0.36 –   

24. MGP Inc. @ USD  54.28 –  2.01  4.35  2.34  18.87  1.47 –    1.47 –   

25. Euro ( )  417.32  453.24  727.26 –  (126.63) –   

26. Laboratoires Pharma 2000 S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  1.27  (32.44)  30.33  61.50  34.57  (4.34) –    (4.34) –   

27. Laboratoires Negma S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  (0.68)  346.12  54.20  110.61  (31.61) –   

28. Niverpharma S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  1.11  (25.53)  5.64  30.06  (14.36) –    (14.36) –   

Negma Beneulex S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  0.52  0.63  1.17  0.02 –  (0.01)  –  (0.01) –   

30. Phytex S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  7.44  (6.47)  1.03  0.06 –   (0.04) –    (0.04) –   

31. Hariphar S.C. @ Euro ( )  0.11  3.54  3.65 –  –  –   –   

32. S.C.I. Salome @ Euro ( )  0.01  0.35  0.52  0.16 –   0.38 –    0.38 –   

33. Laboratoires Lerads S.A.S. @ Euro ( )  0.26  (6.03)  1.36  7.13  0.85  (1.62) –    (1.62) –   

34. USD  54.28  134.81  (12.85)  251.18  221.12  (0.55) –    (0.55) –   

35. USD  54.28  0.27  0.82  43.06  52.08  2.68  1.86  0.82 –  

S.A.S.) and S.C.I. Salome (a subsidiary of Laboratories Negma S.A.S.) were liquidated on December 24, 2012 and December 27, 2012 respectively.

` 2.18 crore – 755,000 equity shares of Swiss Biosciences AG.

 The investments made by all other subsidiary companies is only in their step- down subsidiaries, no other investments are made by these companies.

@  Inclusive of shares held through wholly owned subsidiaries.



 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

(Contd.)

Name of Subsidiary Company

Financial 

year to 

which 

accounts 

relates 

Holding Company's interest as at the close  

of financial year of subsidiary company

Currency

Net aggregate amount 

of subsidiary company’s 

profits after deducting its 

losses or vice-versa, so far 

as it concerns members of 

Holding Company which 

are not dealt within the 

Company's accounts

Net Aggregate amount of 

the Profits/(Losses) of the 

Subsidiary so far as dealt 

with or provision is made 

for those losses in Holding 

Company's Accounts 

(i) Shareholding (ii) Extent 

of Holding 

(% age)

 For the 

current 

financial 

year ended 

March 31, 

2013 

(in crore) 

 For the 

previous 

financial year/

period since 

it became a 

subsidiary 

(in crore) 

For the 

subsidiary's 

financial  

year ended 

March 31, 

2013 

(in crore)

For the 

previous 

financial 

years till it 

became the 

subsidiary 

(in crore)

31-Mar-13 18,000,000 Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully 
paid up 100% `  2.73  1.25 0.00 0.00

Vinton Healthcare Limited 31-Mar-13 10,000,000 Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 

Preference Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up 100% ` 1.04  0.23 0.00 0.00

Limited
31-Mar-13 2,000,000 Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully  

paid up 100% `  1.56  (1.73) 0.00 0.00

Z & Z Service GmbH @ 31-Mar-13 Euro 3,625,000* 100% Euro ( )  (0.06)  (0.07) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 1,307,368 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% STG (£)  (0.03)  (0.04) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 1,500,000 Ordinary shares of Naira 10 each fully 
paid up 100% USD 0.31  (0.28) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 27,504,823 Ordinary shares of 1p each fully 
paid up 100% STG (£) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CP Pharmaceuticals Limited @ 31-Mar-13 570,000 Ordinary shares of £ 1 each 
100% STG (£)  8.51 0.00 0.00

CP Pharmaceuticals (Schweiz) AG @ 31-Mar-13 250 shares of CHF 1000 each 100% GBP  0.00  0.54 0.00 0.00

Wallis Group Limited @ 31-Mar-13 1,408,667 Ordinary shares of £ 1 each 100% STG (£)  (0.04) (0.06) 0.00 0.00

The Wallis Laboratory Limited @ 31-Mar-13 4,040 Ordinary shares of £ 1 each 100% STG (£) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 100% USD  (0.06)  (0.06) 0.00 0.00

Wallis Licensing Limited @ 31-Mar-13 1 Ordinary shares of £ 1 each 100% STG (£) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 2,000,000 Equity shares of $ 1 each 100% USD  51.03 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 44,600,000 shares of CHF 1 each 100% CHF/USD  1,617.83 356.42 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 50,000 Ordinary shares of £ 1 each 100% STG (£)  7.77  5.88 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 1000 Ordinary shares of CY£1 each 100% USD  (0.04)  (0.03) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 10,001,000 Ordinary shares of  1 each 100% Euro ( )  17.64 0.00 0.00

Nonash Limited @ 31-Mar-13  1)  30,100 Ordinary Shares of Euro 1.27 each
 2) 100 A Ordinary Shares of Euro 1.27 each
 3) 100 B ordinary Shares of Euro 1.27 each
 4) 500 C ordinary shares of Euro 1.27 each
 5)  1000 D Ordinary Shares of Euro 0.63 each
 6) 250 E Ordinary Shares of Euro 2.54 each
 7) 100 F Ordinary Shares of Euro 6.35 each
 8)  2000 G ordinary Shares of Euro 0.32 each

13)   20 L Ordinary Shares of Euro 31.74 each
14)   125 M Ordinary Shares of Euro 5.08 each

100% Euro ( )  (1.05)  2.60 0.00 0.00
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

(Contd.)

Name of Subsidiary Company

Financial 

year to 

which 

accounts 

relates 

Holding Company's interest as at the close  

of financial year of subsidiary company

Currency

Net aggregate amount 

of subsidiary company’s 

profits after deducting its 

losses or vice-versa, so far 

as it concerns members of 

Holding Company which 

are not dealt within the 

Company's accounts

Net Aggregate amount of 

the Profits/(Losses) of the 

Subsidiary so far as dealt 

with or provision is made 

for those losses in Holding 

Company's Accounts 

(i) Shareholding (ii) Extent 

of Holding 

(% age)

 For the 

current 

financial 

year ended 

March 31, 

2013 

(in crore) 

 For the 

previous 

financial year/

period since 

it became a 

subsidiary 

(in crore) 

For the 

subsidiary's 

financial  

year ended 

March 31, 

2013 

(in crore)

For the 

previous 

financial 

years till it 

became the 

subsidiary 

(in crore)

Pinewood Laboratories Limited @ 31-Mar-13  0.125 each                                                           
120 "A" Ordinary shares of  1.25 each 100% Euro ( )  47.52 0.00 0.00

Esparma AG @ 31-Mar-13 100,000 Shares of CHF 1 each 100% CHF (0.05) (0.05) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 1,100 Ordinary Shares of US$ 1 each 100% USD (0.01) (0.22) 0.00 0.00

Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc. @ 31-Mar-13 100 Ordinary Shares of US$ 0.01 each 100% USD 0.36 0.21 0.00 0.00

MGP Inc. @ 31-Mar-13 100 Ordinary Shares of US$ 0.01 each 100% USD 1.47 0.50 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 601,000 Shares of  100 each 100% Euro ( ) (126.63) (208.86) 0.00 0.00

Laboratoires Pharma 2000 S.A.S. @ 31-Mar-13 11,400 Shares of  16 each 100% Euro ( ) (4.34) 0.00 0.00

Laboratoires Negma S.A.S. @ 31-Mar-13  153 each 100% Euro ( ) 51.65 0.00 0.00

Niverpharma S.A.S. @ 31-Mar-13 10,000 Shares of  16 each 100% Euro ( ) (14.36) (3.65) 0.00 0.00

Negma Benulex S.A S. @ 31-Mar-13  25 each 100% Euro ( ) (0.01) 0.11 0.00 0.00

Phytex S.A.S.@ 31-Mar-13 7,000 Shares of  153 each 100% Euro ( ) (0.04) 0.00 0.00

Hariphar S.C. @ 31-Mar-13 100 shares of  152.45 each 100% Euro ( ) (0.43) 0.00 0.00

S.C.I. Salome @ 31-Mar-13 100 shares of  15 each 100% Euro ( ) 0.38 0.00 0.00

Laboratoires Lerads S.A.S. @ 31-Mar-13 740 shares of  50 each 100% Euro ( )  (1.62)  (2.64) 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 24,838,863 Shares of MXP 1 each 100% USD  (0.55) – 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-13 50,000 Shares of MXP 1 each 100% USD  0.82 – 0.00 0.00

and Haripar S.C. (a subsidiary of Laboratories Pharma 2000 S.A.S.) were liquidated on November 14, 2012 and November 28, 2012 respectively. 

 As per German law, there are no shares issued. Only capital is subscribed to, which is 25,000 euros and subscription to capital reserve is 3,600,000 euros..

@ Inclusive of shares held through wholly owned subsidiaries.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 27, 2013

V. R. Khetan

Company Secretary

H. F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

Huzaifa Khorakiwala

Executive Director

Murtaza Khorakiwala

Managing Director

Shekhar Datta

D. S. Brar

Sanjaya Baru

Aman Mehta 

R. A. Shah

Directors}



 

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 
March 31, 2013.

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

 (1) Energy conservation measures taken:

fans.

 

 (2) Additional Investments and proposals being implemented for reduction of energy consumption: 

 (3) Impact of measures taken at (1) and (2) above:

 (4)  Total energy consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production:

Year Ended 

31-03-2013

 
31-03-2012

A. Power & Fuel Consumption

1. Electricity

a.
7.14

Total Amount (` in Crore) 48.70 37.13
`) 6.82

0.10

3.10 3.21
`) 13.90
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Year Ended 

31-03-2013

 
31-03-2012

0.09
3 2.94

`) 1.78

2. Furnace Oil, LSHS, LDO & HSD

2,893.74

Total Amount (` in Crore) 13.54

46.80

3. Natural Gas 
3)(in Crore) 0.46

Total Amount (` in Crore) 14.72

` 3) 3,192.00

4. Others

1,428.00 0.00
Total Amount (` in Crore) 0.67 0.00

` 4,688.79 0.00

  B. Consumption per unit of production:

    

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 Research & Development (R & D): 

 1. Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by the Company:

  Spearheading Research & Development

 
 
 

the areas it operates on.

  Novel Drug Delivery Systems

 

  Research Efforts for Unique ANDAs Pipeline



 

 

 

  Biotechnology & Genomics Research

 

  New Drug Discovery Programme 

 

 

  Patents 

   

  Technology Improvement in Chemical and Pharmaceuticals: 

 2. Benefits derived as a result of above R & D:

 3. Expenditure on R & D: 

(` in crore)

Consolidated Standalone

Year Ended 

31-03-2013

 
31-03-2012

Year Ended 

31-03-2013

 
31-03-2012

(a) Capital 21.84 18.50

0.00 0.00

(c) 353.97 200.97

(d) Total 375.81 219.47

(e) 6.70% 8.88%
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III. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION:

 1. Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

 2. Benefits derived as a result of above efforts:

 3.  Imported Technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): 

IV. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

` `

 (` in Crore)

Year Ended 

31-03-2013

 
31-03-2012

  284.33

78.03

  1,458.24

  1,095.88

 DR. H. F. KHORAKIWALA

 Chairman



 

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DETAILS OF ESOP GRANTED AS ON MARCH 31, 2013

Description ESOP Grant – 2011 ESOP Grant – 2012

1.

2.

of the shares prior to the date of 

 
` ` `  
per option.

of the shares prior to the date of 

 
`

3.

exercised. 

exercise of option
`

option entitles the holder thereof 

7.

`

10.

options.

11.  

options @ `
@ `  
@ `

12.

13.
to issue of shares on exercise of options 
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Description ESOP Grant – 2011 ESOP Grant – 2012

compensation cost so computed  and the 
` 1 crore 

` ` 0.07. 

is the same as the option exercise 
price.

exercise price of `
option is `

exercise price of `
option is `

 
` `

is the same as the option exercise 
price.

exercise price of `
option is `

exercise price of `
option is `

of 12 months.



 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

  The Company is committed to do business in an efficient, responsible, honest and ethical manner. The core values of 
Company’s governance process include independence, integrity, accountability, transparency, responsibility and fairness. 
The Company is committed to learn and adopt the best practices of corporate governance. It is the Company’s endeavour 
to attain highest level of governance to enhance the stakeholder’s value. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 (a)  Composition and other related matters 

   The Board consists of an optimal combination of Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors, representing 
a judicious mix of in-depth knowledge and experience. 

  During the year 2012-2013, following changes took place in the Board of Directors:

Company w.e.f. August 6, 2012

   The present strength of the Board is thus 8 (eight) Directors comprising 3 (three) Executive Directors and 5 (five) 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

 

review are given in the table below: 

Name of the Director Category of 

Directorship 

Number of 

Directorships 

held in other 

companies (1) 

Number of committee  

positions held in other 

companies(2) 

Attendance at 

Chairman Member Board 

Meetings

Last Annual 

General 

Meeting 

(September 

13, 2012) 

 
Chairman

Executive 2 None None 5 Yes

Non-Executive 
Independent

3 None 2 4 Yes

Non-Executive 
Independent

1 None None 2 No

Non-Executive 
Independent

2 None 4 3 Yes

Non-Executive 
Independent

5 3 1 5 Yes

Non-Executive 
Independent

14 4 4 5 Yes

# Non-Executive 
Independent

7 None 4 1 Not Applicable

@ Non-Executive 
Independent

4 None 1 2 No

 
Executive Director

Executive 4 None 1 5 Yes

 
Managing Director

Executive 4 3 None 5 Yes

#  Dr. Abid Hussain passed away on June 21, 2012. Hence, the number of other directorships and committee positions given in the table are as on date  
of cessation. 

**   Dr. Sanjaya Baru and Mr. Davinder Singh Brar were appointed as Additional (Non-Executive Independent) Directors of the Company w.e.f.  
August 6, 2012.

@   Mr. Bharat Patel ceased to be a Director w.e.f. September 13, 2012. Hence, the number of other directorships and committee positions given in the table 
are as on date of cessation.

(1)   The number of directorships excludes Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 and 
Alternate Directorships.

(2)   This includes the Chairmanships/Memberships only in the Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievance Committee of all listed and unlisted  
public limited companies.
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As will be seen from the above table, none of the Directors hold directorships in more than 15 public limited companies 
nor any of them is a member of more than ten committees of the prescribed nature or holds Chairmanship of more 
than five such committees across all public limited companies in which they are directors. 

   Selection and appointment of new Directors

     The Board takes decisions for selection and induction of any new member on the Board. The process of selection 

professional backgrounds and their ability to attend meetings in India.

   Inter-se relationships among directors

inter-se relationships among the directors.

 (b) Board Meetings and Procedures 

   Board meetings are held at least once in every quarter and the time gap between two meetings is not more 
than four months, thereby complying with applicable statutory requirements. During the financial year ended  

 

   The Board is regularly apprised and informed of important business-related information. The agenda papers are 
circulated in advance to all the Board members. The following information is furnished to the Board on periodic basis:

Board level

by the Company 

 
intellectual property

Industrial relations front

 
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc. 

  Post meeting follow up mechanism

    The important decisions taken at Board and Committee meetings are communicated to the respective departments 
after the meetings for the implementations of the decisions taken at the board. 

 (c)  Details of Directors seeking re-appointment 

this Annual Report. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 (a) Composition and Meetings



 

2012-2013, consequent to the changes in Board of Directors referred above, the constitution of Audit Committee was 
also changed. 

   The constitution of the Committee and the particulars of attendance at the committee meetings are given below:

Name of the Director/

Member

Designation Category Profession No. of Meetings 

Attended

Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent

3

Non-Executive 
Independent

Economist 2

Non-Executive 
Independent

1

Non-Executive 
Independent

4

Non-Executive 
Independent

4

# Non-Executive 
Independent

Consultant 1

Non-Executive 
Independent

2

**   Dr. Sanjaya Baru and Mr. Davinder Singh Brar were appointed as members of the Commitee w.e.f. September 13, 2012. 
# Dr. Abid Hussain passed away on June 21, 2012. 
*  Mr. Bharat Patel ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012. 

 
the meetings.

 (b) Terms of reference

of financial reporting process, reviewing the quarterly results and annual financial statements, recommending 

services, discussion of audit plan, reviewing accounting policies and practices, adequacy of internal controls and 
internal audit systems, discussions with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up action, reviewing 
related party transactions, risk management policies and practices, investments made by subsidiaries and internal 
audit reports. 

4. INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

 (a) Composition and meetings

   The Investors Grievance Committee aims at redressing shareholders complaints such as transfer of shares,  
non-receipt of shares, non-receipt of dividends etc. 

During the year 2012-2013, consequent to the changes in Board of Directors referred above, the constitution of 
Investor Grievance Committee was also changed. 
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   The constitution of the Committee and the particulars of attendance at the committee meetings are given below:

Name of the Director/

Member

Designation Category Profession No. of Meetings  

Attended

Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent

Business 3

Non-Executive 
Independent

Economist 2

Non-Executive 
Independent

Business 1

@ Non-Executive 
Independent

Business 2

Non-Executive 
Independent

4

# Non-Executive 
Independent

Consultant 1

Non-Executive 
Independent

Business 2

**  Dr. Sanjaya Baru and Mr. Davinder Singh Brar were appointed as members of the Committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012.
# Dr. Abid Hussain passed away on June 21, 2012. 
* Mr. Bharat Patel ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012.
@ Mr. Aman Mehta ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f. November 14, 2012. 

 

 (b) Investor Complaints and redressal

   During the year 2012-2013, 124 complaints were received from the shareholders and the same were duly resolved as 
per the summary given below:

Nature of communication Received Resolved

19 19
98 98

Non-Receipt of Annual Report 5 5
2 2

in solving critical issues. 

5. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 (a) Terms of reference, Composition

   The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee includes review and recommendation for fixation and revision 
of remuneration packages of Executive Directors on the Board. 

   The constitution of Committee and particulars of attendance at the meeting of the Committee are given below:

Name of the Director/Member Designation Category No. of Meetings Attended

Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1
Non-Executive Independent Nil
Non-Executive Independent N.A
Non-Executive Independent N.A

# Non-Executive Independent 1
* Mr. R. A. Shah was appointed as Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012.
**  Dr. Sanjaya Baru and Mr. Davinder Singh Brar were appointed as members of the committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012.
#  Mr. Bharat Patel ceased to be Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. September 13, 2012.



 

 (b) Remuneration Policy

 
The remuneration policy of the Company for managerial personnel is primarily based on the criteria like  
performance of the Company, potential, experience and performance of individual managerial personnel and 
external environment. 

 (c) Remuneration of Directors

   The remuneration of the Executive Directors is decided by the Board based on the recommendations of the 

by the shareholders in the general meeting. The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors comprises of sitting fees 
and commission. The Non-executive Directors are paid sitting fees of `  
Audit Committee and Investor Grievance Committee attended by them. The table below gives the details of the 

Name of the Director Material 

Pecuniary 

relationship  

with the 

Company, if any

Tenure No. of equity 

shares held by 

non-executive 

director & their 

relatives

Remuneration for the 

financial year ended 

March 31, 2013 

(` in crore)

Sitting 

fees

Salary & 

Perquisites

Total

28, 2015
N.A. — 2.588 2.588

None N.A. 1,600 0.020 — 0.020
None N.A. Nil 0.012 — 0.012
None N.A. 0.010 — 0.010
None N.A. Nil 0.022 — 0.022
None N.A. 73,000 0.026 — 0.026
None N.A. Nil 0.006 — 0.006
None N.A. Nil 0.012 — 0.012

30, 2014
N.A. — 0.960 0.960

30, 2014
N.A. — 0.960 0.960

  Notes:
  1.  No commission is being paid to Executive and Non-Executive Directors, in view of inadequate profits during the year ended  

March 31, 2013.
  2.  There is no provision for payment of severance fees and no performance linked incentives are paid to any director. The notice period 

is governed by service rules of the Company.
  3.  The remuneration of Dr. H. F. Khorakiwala, Dr. Huzaifa Khorakiwala and Dr. Murtaza Khorakiwala is exclusive of contribution  

to Provident Fund by the Company. 
  4.  Under Wockhardt Employee Stock Option Scheme – 2011, the ESOS Compensation Committee has granted 8,500 stock options  

to five Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. Shekhar Datta, Dr. Sanajay Baru, Mr. Davinder Singh Brar, 
Mr. Aman Mehta and Mr. R. A. Shah. Details of number of options granted to each Director is given in the Annexure to Director’s 
Report. Each option is convertible into 1 fully paid up equity share of  ` 5/- each. The options would be vested after one year from date  
of grant i.e. on March 7, 2014. The options can be exercised within a period of 1 year from date of vesting. 

    The disclosure pursuant to SEBI (ESOS and ESPS) Guidelines, 2009 is annexed to Director’s Report forming part of Annual Report. 

6. OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

   Apart from committees statutorily required, the Board has formulated certain committees and has delegated some 

Committee meetings are placed before the Board for their ratification and approval. The Board has constituted following 
three Committees:
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  —  CREDIT FACILITIES COMMITTEE 

attended by all the Committee members. 

  —  SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

CDR, redemption of said preference shares, debentures and for allotment of equity shares pursuant to exercise 

Committee members.

  —  ESOS COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

 

– 2011 of the Company. The Committee is responsible for determining the employees eligible for participation 
in the scheme, number of options to be issued to the employees, directors, determination of vesting period 

Compensation Committee were held and the same were attended by all the members of the Committee.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 (a)  Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as under:

Financial Year/ 

Period ended

Day, Date and Time of AGM Location

 
at 3.00 p.m.

Y. B. Chavan Auditorium,  
 

 

 
at 3.00 p.m.

Y. B. Chavan Auditorium,  
 

 

 
at 3.30 p.m.

Y. B. Chavan Auditorium,  
 

 

 (b) Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings:

starting from the financial year April 1, 2012.

financial years starting from the financial year April 1, 2012.

financial years starting from the financial year April 1, 2012.



 

“ESOP Scheme”) not 

shares of face value of `

“ESOP Scheme”) not 

shares of face value of `

 

 (c) Postal Ballot:

  During the year 2012-2013, no resolution was passed through postal ballot.

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
in this Annual Report and forms part of the report.

9. DISCLOSURES 

 (a) Related party disclosures

   During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions i.e transactions of 
material nature with its promoters, directors, management or their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The Independent Directors on the Company’s Board,  
apart from receiving sitting fees and stock options, do not have any other material pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company, its promoters, its management or its subsidiaries, which in the judgment of the 

the transactions in which the Directors are interested is placed before the Board regularly for its approval and is 
 

parties are disclosed in the notes to Accounts. 

 (b) Compliance

   The Company has established procedures to enable its Board to periodically review compliance of all laws applicable 
to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances. The Company has 

capital markets during the last three years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock 

 (c) Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

personnel. The Code has been posted on the website of the Company www.wockhardt.com. All Board members 
 

Annexure I.

 (d) CEO/CFO Certification

the year under review. The certificate has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board 
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 (e) Risk Management Policy

risks and lays down the procedure for mitigation of the risks. The above facilitates not only in risk assessment  
 

compliance risk across all business operations. These control procedures and systems ensure that the Board  
and the audit committee are periodically informed on the material risks faced by the Company and the steps taken by  
the Company to mitigate those risks.

 (f) Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements

   The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of clause 49 of the listing agreement relating  
to corporate governance. The Company has adopted the non-mandatory requirements of the clause 49 of the  
listing agreement pertaining to the constitution of remuneration committee, shareholders’ rights and whistle  
blower policy.

 (g) The Company has not raised any funds through any public, rights or preferential issue. 

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Website: The Company’s website www.wockhardt.com contains the separate section for Investors wherein the 
updated information pertaining to quarterly, half-yearly, yearly, annual financial results, official press releases, the 
investor presentations, code of conduct, shareholding pattern is available in a user friendly and downloadable form.

Financial Results: The quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company are submitted to the stock exchanges 
immediately after being approved by the Board. The results of the Company are published in one English daily 

are also posted on Company’s website www.wockhardt.com.

Annual Report:

Report, Auditors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. 

Chairman’s Communication: The Chairman’s speech is placed on the website of the Company.

Designated Exclusive Email ID: The Company has designed Email ID investorrelations@wockhardt.com exclusive for 

11. CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

12. VOLUNTARY GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Mobile 1000

health vans.

Mobile 1000 eye 

Mobile 1000 urban – To provide primary health care in urban slum localities through mobile health vans. 

Mobile 1000 ambulances – To provide critical care in emergencies through ambulances.

HIV/AIDS(WHARF)

Dr. Health – To spread awareness on various social cause.

Swasthya Jaanch – To provide low cost medical solutions with best quality and accuracy.

POSHAK

and lactating mothers. 

Arogya Kendra – To serve rural community through professional health care delivery.

SHUDHU – It is water purification tablet and very economical which purifies 20 litres of water in 30 minutes.



 

 
for significant contribution in economic and social development of the Country.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day, Date and Time

Venue  

2.  FINANCIAL YEAR AND TENTATIVE FINANCIAL CALENDAR

3.  BOOK CLOSURE DATE 

 
equity dividend. 

4.  DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE 

 

5. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES 

(B)  Global Depository Receipts 
(GDRs)

 The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2013-2014 to all the above stock exchanges.

6. STOCK CODES

 (a) Stock code

 (b)  Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
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7.  MARKET PRICE DATA: High/Low and number of shares traded during each month in the financial year 2012-2013 

on NSE and BSE

Month

NSE BSE

High 

(`)

Low 

(`)

Monthly 

Volume

High 

(`)

Low 

(`)

Monthly  

Volume

April 2012 732.00 597.00 5,145,933 732.40 597.65 2,425,648

832.70 632.00 18,000,790 832.80 631.00 8,792,962

941.70 795.00 11,433,224 940.00 793.40 5,749,351

984.00 878.00 6,825,669 982.20 880.15 3,168,397

August 2012 1324.00 974.20 14,036,010 1325.00 974.45 5,836,594

1439.70 1170.00 1,660,658 1437.85 1164.85 362,363

1585.00 1255.00 1,537,926 1575.00 1251.00 445,784

November 2012 1830.00 1477.70 1,627,412 1827.00 1477.00 316,680

December 2012 1750.00 1510.10 1,049,655 1749.95 1504.00 227,114

1746.50 1544.00 1,407,396 1747.55 1543.05 475,567

1975.00 1682.35 1,452,891 1965.00 1677.85 274,542

2168.80 1833.45 3,644,872 2166.05 1830.90 934,807

 Source: website of BSE and NSE

8. Stock Price Performance Index in comparison with BSE Sensex and NIFTY

 Source: website of BSE and NSE



 

9.  REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT 

 Link Intime India Private Limited

  Tel :  (022) 25946970 -78

  Email :  wockhardt@linkintime.co.in 

10.  SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

processed and delivered within 15 days from the date of lodgement if the documents are complete in all respects. 
 

15 days from receipt if the documents are in order.

11.  PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 

Necessary procedures has been laid down for Directors, officers, designated employees for dealing in the securities of the 
Company. The policies and procedures are periodically communicated to the employees who are considered as insiders 

quiet periods when they are not permitted to trade in the securities. 

12.  STATUTORY AUDITORS

has furnished declaration confirming their independence as well as the arm’s length relationship with the Company as 
well as declaring that they have not taken up any non-audit assignments for the Company. The Company believes that  

is essential to ensure audit quality and objectivity. Robust internal control systems and risk management framework,  
review of Auditors’ performance by Audit Committee and peer review of the Audit firm, are some of the important factors 

13.  DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2013

Number of  

Equity Shares

No. of  

Shareholders

% of total 

Shareholders

Amount in ` % of total  

amount

1 –  500 30,952 86.51 14,494,795 2.65

501 –  1000 3,550 9.92 11,389,485 2.08

1001 –  2000 560 1.57 4,033,580 0.74

2001 –  3000 168 0.47 2,157,290 0.39

3001 –  4000 91 0.25 1,595,925 0.29

4001 –  5000 69 0.19 1,612,360 0.29

5001 –  10000 124 0.35 4,530,595 0.83

Above 10000 264 0.74 508,102,985 92.73

TOTAL 35,778 100.00 547,917,015 100.00
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  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2013

Categories Number of  

shares

Amount in `  % to total  

paid-up capital

80,585,382 402,926,910 73.54

121,600 608,000 0.11

11,478 57,390 0.01

Banks 11,030 55,150 0.01

1,128,142 5,640,710 1.03

Insurance Companies 2,407,548 12,037,740 2.20

9,943,671 49,718,355 9.07

Bodies Corporates 1,529,771 7,648,855 1.40

Non Resident Indians 261,878 1,309,390 0.24

150,978 754,890 0.14

13,196,564 65,982,820 12.04

232,579 1,162,895 0.21

Trusts 2,782 13,910 0.00

TOTAL 109,583,403 547,917,015 100.00

  Note:  During the year, paid up share capital of the Company has been increased by 147,500 shares on account of allotment of shares pursuant 
to exercise of stock options.

S. No. Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % of holding

1. 2,231,148 2.04

2. 2,099,843 1.92

3. 692,248 0.63

4. 565,512 0.52

5. 564,063 0.51

6. 559,124 0.51

7. 500,000 0.46

8. 499,477 0.46

9. 450,000 0.41

10. 354,956 0.32

14.  DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

  The Company’s equity shares are compulsorily traded in electronic form and are available for trading with both the 

Company’s equity shares is INE049B01025.

15.  STATUS OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS 

  Dividends of the Company for the financial years which remain unpaid were transferred to the Investor Education and 
 



 

  The following are details of unpaid dividend which are still in unpaid Dividend account and will be transferred to the  

Financial Year Type of  

Dividend

Date of  

Declaration

Due date  

of transfer to IEPF

 2005  04-August-2013
 2006 Interim  12-April-2014
 2007 Interim  27-Nov-2014
 2007 28-April-2008

16.   OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATE AND LIKELY 

IMPACT ON EQUITY

shares of `

conversion. There will be no impact of conversion of GDR’s as the Company has allotted the underlying shares. 

17.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL HISTORY OF THE COMPANY SINCE INCORPORATION UPTO 31ST MARCH 2013

Date of 

allotment

No. of 

equity 

shares

Cumulative 

No. of equity 

shares

Face 

value 

(in `)

Consideration Nature of allotment Cumulative 

share capital 

(in `)

11.02.2000 35,061,652 35,061,652 10 Allotted to the shareholders 

one equity share of the 
Company for every one 

them

of demerger of 

and acquisition  
of pharmaceuticals 
division by the 
Company

350,616,520

22.04.2000 1,200,000 36,261,652 10 Allotted to the shareholders 

i.e. one equity share of the 
Company for every four 

amalgamation of 

Company

362,616,520

14.08.2002 3,600 36,265,252 10 Cash 362,652,520
07.01.2003 2,700 36,267,952 10 Cash 362,679,520
16.09.2003 16,700 36,284,652 10 Cash 362,846,520
14.10.2003 5,550 36,290,202 10 Cash 362,902,020
25.11.2003 1,700 36,291,902 10 Cash 362,919,020
31.12.2003 3,950 36,295,852 10 Cash 362,958,520
15.01.2004 15,350 36,311,202 10 Cash 363,112,020
23.02.2004 9,700 36,320,902 10 Cash 363,209,020
05.04.2004 9,450 36,330,352 10 Cash 363,303,520
24.04.2004 1,650 36,332,002 10 Cash 363,320,020
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Date of 

allotment

No. of 

equity 

shares

Cumulative 

No. of equity 

shares

Face 

value 

(in `)

Consideration Nature of allotment Cumulative 

share capital 

(in `)

07.05.2004 — 72,664,004 5
 

`  
` 

`
 

` 

363,320,020

08.05.2004 36,332,002 108,996,006 5 Bonus shares Allotment of bonus 
shares in the ratio of 1:2

544,980,030

21.01.2005 70,350 109,066,356 5 Cash 545,331,780
21.02.2005 29,550 109,095,906 5 Cash 545,479,530
14.03.2005 25,350 109,121,256 5 Cash 545,606,280
06.04.2005 17,250 109,138,506 5 Cash 545,692,530
09.06.2005 4,149 109,142,655 5 Cash 545,713,275
12.09.2005 13,299 109,155,954 5 Cash 545,779,770
13.10.2005 141,397 109,297,351 5 Cash 546,486,755
09.11.2005 2,250 109,299,601 5 Cash 546,498,005
11.01.2006 81,000 109,380,601 5 Cash 546,903,005
28.02.2006 39,450 109,420,051 5 Cash 547,100,255
28.04.2006 5,850 109,425,901 5 Cash 547,129,505
16.08.2006 10,002 109,435,903 5 Cash 547,179,515
19.12.2012 122,200 109,558,103 5 Cash 547,790,515
21.01.2013 25,300 109,583,403 5 Cash 547,917,015

18. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

 
 

 
 

19. PLANT LOCATIONS

Formulation Plants Bulk Drugs 

 
Chikalthana, Aurangabad - 431210 

 
 

Nani Daman - 396210

 
Ankleshwar - 393002,  
Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat, India  
(including Chepalosporin Bulk)

 
Aurangabad - 431210 

 
 

Nani Daman - 396210
 

 
 
 

 DR. H. F. KHORAKIWALA

 Chairman



 

ANNEXURE TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AFFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT AND BUSINESS ETHICS

WOCKHARDT LIMITED

DR. MURTAZA KHORAKIWALA

CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
Wockhardt Limited 

Wockhardt Limited  

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management.  

ensuring the Compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and is based on the 

of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned listing agreements.

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

VIRENDRA BHATT
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